
 

Democracy Service 
Council Offices 
CAERNARFON 

Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

Ian Jones  
Head of  Democracy  

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
 

 

 
 

Date and Time 
 

1.30 pm, THURSDAY, 1ST MAY, 2025 
 

* NOTE * 
 

This meeting will be webcast 
 

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Hybrid  - Siambr Dafydd Orwig, Swyddfeydd y Cyngor, Caernarfon LL55 1SH 

   
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Eirian Roberts 

01286 679018 

eirianroberts3@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 23/04/25) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home


 

 
WEDNESDAY, 23 APRIL 2025 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CYNGOR GWYNEDD – THURSDAY, 1 MAY 2025 
 
YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to attend a multi-location meeting of CYNGOR 
GWYNEDD which will be held at 1.30 pm on THURSDAY, 1ST MAY, 2025 in 
SIAMBR DAFYDD ORWIG, SWYDDFEYDD Y CYNGOR, CAERNARFON LL55 
1SH / VIRTUALLY ON ZOOM, to consider the matters mentioned in the following 
agenda. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
Head of Democracy  
 
 
The following rooms will be available for the political groups during the morning: - 
 
Plaid Cymru - Siambr Dafydd Orwig  
Independent – Siambr Hywel Dda 
Lib / Lab – Ystafell Ogwen  
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   CHAIR 
 

 

 To appoint a Chair for 2025/26. 
 

 

2.   VICE-CHAIR 
 

 

 To appoint a Vice-chair for 2025/26. 
 

 

3.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

7 - 28 

 The Chair shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of 
the Council held on 6th March, 2025 be signed as a true record. 
 

 

5.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of personal interest. 
 

 

6.   THE CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

 To receive any Chair’s announcements. 
 

 

7.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items which are urgent business in the opinion of the 
Chair so they may be considered. 
 

 

8.   QUESTIONS 
 

 

 To consider any questions the appropriate notice for which have 
been given under Section 4.18 of the Constitution. 
 

 

9.   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S POLITICAL BALANCE 
 

29 - 33 

 To submit the report of the Head of Democracy. 
 

 

10.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR OF THE DEMOCRACY SERVICES 
COMMITTEE 2025/26 
 

 

 To appoint a Chair of the Democracy Services Committee for 
2025/26. 
 
[In accordance with the requirements of Section 14 of the Local 
Government Bill (Wales) 2011, the Chair of the Democracy Services 
Committee shall be appointed by the Full Council and it cannot 

 



 

appoint a member of a political group which is represented on the 
executive.] 
 

11.   APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE - INTERVIEW PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

34 - 35 

 To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

12.   AMENDMENT OF THE CONSTITUTION 
 

36 - 39 

 To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

13.   URGENT CABINET DECISION 
 

40 

 To submit the report of the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

14.   NOTICES OF MOTION 
 

 

(A)  NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR ELFED WYN AP ELWYN 
 

 

 In accordance with the Notice of Motion received under Section 4.19 
of the Constitution, Councillor Elfed Wyn ap Elwyn will propose as 
follows:- 
 
The Council calls upon the Westminster Government to devolve 
powers over water reservoirs and the water network in Wales, 
which will allow Wales to benefit from one of its most important 
resources. 
 

 

(B)  NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR BECA BROWN 
 

 

 In accordance with the Notice of Motion received under Section 4.19 
of the Constitution, Councillor Beca Brown will propose as follows:- 
 
1 in 4 women and 1 in 6 men have experienced sexual abuse 
during their childhood, and this figure could be even higher.  
 
Not only were these experiences horrific to them at the time, but 
they must live with the effects of these dreadful crimes 
throughout their lives.  
 
Victims of sexual abuse consistently say that there is not 
enough support available to them, and that there is insufficient 
awareness of the trauma they carry every day, forever. 
 
1 May is an annual day to remember the victims; to raise 
awareness of this appalling crime, and to remind us that sexual 
abuse can happen to any child, in any community. Sexual abuse 
does not recognise cultural, social, linguistic, religious, gender 
or racial differences. It can happen anywhere, to anyone. 
 

 



 

Not My Shame is the campaign group that organises this annual 
event, holding a minute's silence on this date each year to 
remember the pain of sexual abuse victims around the world. 
 
We call upon Cyngor Gwynedd to recognise this date every year 
from now on, and to adopt it as a day of remembrance for 
victims. We call on the Council to fly the campaign flag above its 
headquarters on 1 May every year to clearly state that sexual 
abuse is not the victim's shame, it is the offender's shame. We 
call upon Cyngor Gwynedd to draw public attention on 1 May 
every year to the support available to victims, and to explain to 
the public how and where they can report sexual abuse or child 
protection concerns.  
 

(C)  NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR GWYNFOR OWEN 
 

 

 In accordance with the Notice of Motion received under Section 4.19 
of the Constitution, Councillor Gwynfor Owen will propose as follows:- 
 
Welsh public services are facing a loss of up to £65m due to the 
increase to national insurance announced by the Labour 
government in Westminster. 
 
Once again, Welsh Councils will experience an actual loss as the 
government uses the Barnett formula to determine how much 
funding is allocated to devolved countries. The Barnett formula 
is based on population size rather than on need. 
 
It is unfair that Welsh public services will not receive full funding 
for the increase. This is another example of how Wales is at a 
total disadvantage as a result of a Labour government in the 
Senedd in Wales and in Westminster. 
 
As we are still awaiting details from the two governments it is 
not possible to calculate the exact figure at present, but Cyngor 
Gwynedd is likely to be at a loss of around £1m, which is an 
amount we have had to pass on to our taxpayers. 
 
Cyngor Gwynedd is therefore calling on the Welsh Government 

to demand a fairer method of funding our country from their 

masters in London. 

 

 

(D)  NOTICE OF MOTION BY COUNCILLOR ELIN HYWEL 
 

 

 In accordance with the Notice of Motion received under Section 4.19 
of the Constitution, Councillor Elin Hywel will propose as follows:- 

 

1. This Council notes the disproportionate and cumulative effects 
of austerity policies on the most vulnerable inhabitants of our 

 



 

society by successive UK governments – whether Conservative 
or Labour governments.  

2. Following the UK Government's recent announcement of 
further cuts to benefits totalling £5 billion, this Council 
recognises that these cuts are the continuation and 
progression of austerity policies. With a proportion of 18.1% of 
Gwynedd's population considered as being disabled, the 
people of Gwynedd will be hit particularly hard by the cuts. 
Furthermore, people considered as disabled in Gwynedd are 
less likely to be in employment, with only 50.5% in a paid job, 
and are therefore more likely to rely on benefits as their only 
source of income. 

3. The Council notes our growing responsibility to mitigate the 
brutal effects of austerity policies through the Council's 
services. We are seeing an increase in demand for services 
such as social housing, emergency accommodation and social 
care, and the subsequent increasing cost of maintaining these 
services. We recognise the pressure this places on the 
Council's budgets.  

4. For the sake of the residents of Gwynedd, Cyngor Gwynedd 
calls upon the Welsh Government to stand up for Wales and 
demand that their fellow Labour members in the UK 
Government make a U-turn on their plans to cut benefits.  

5. In order to ensure respect and dignity for all, Cyngor Gwynedd 
calls upon the Welsh Government and the UK Government to 
adequately fund benefits and social services.  

6. In order to end austerity in Wales, this Council demands that 
the Welsh Government calls upon the UK Government to 
devolve welfare and benefits, together with all the necessary 
levers to enable the Welsh Government to protect, care for and 
sustain our society. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

1 

 

 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

 

 
Present:  Councillor Beca Roberts (Chair) 

Councillor Ioan Thomas (Vice-chair). 
 
Councillors:- Craig ab Iago, Menna Baines, Beca Brown, Stephen Churchman, Glyn Daniels, 
Elwyn Edwards, Elfed Wyn ap Elwyn, Alan Jones Evans, Gwilym Evans, Dylan Fernley, Delyth 
Lloyd Griffiths, Jina Gwyrfai, Louise Hughes, Medwyn Hughes, Iwan Huws, Nia Wyn Jeffreys, 
Anne Lloyd Jones, Berwyn Parry Jones, Dawn Lynne Jones, Dewi Jones, Elin Walker Jones, 
Elwyn Jones, Gwilym Jones, Gareth Tudor Jones, Huw Wyn Jones, June Jones, Eryl Jones-
Williams, Cai Larsen, Beth Lawton, Dilwyn Morgan, Linda Morgan, Dewi Owen, Edgar Wyn Owen, 
Gwynfor Owen, Llio Elenid Owen, Gareth Coj Parry, Nigel Pickavance, John Pughe, Rheinallt 
Puw, Arwyn Herald Roberts, Elfed P Roberts, John Pughe Roberts, Meryl Roberts, Richard Glyn 
Roberts, Huw Llwyd Rowlands, Paul Rowlinson, Dyfrig Siencyn, Peter Thomas, Menna 
Trenholme, Rob Triggs, Rhys Tudur, Hefin Underwood, Einir Wyn Williams, Elfed Williams, 
Gareth Williams, Gruffydd Williams, Sasha Williams and Sian Williams. 
 
Officers:   Dafydd Gibbard (Chief Executive), Geraint Owen (Corporate Director), Dylan Owen 
(Corporate Director and Statutory Director of Social Services), Dewi Morgan (Head of Finance 
Department), Iwan Evans (Monitoring Officer), Ian Jones (Head of Democracy Services), Carys 
Fôn Williams (Head of Housing and Property Department), Gwern ap Rhisiart (Head of Education 
Department), Aled Davies (Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department), Ffion Madog 
Evans (Assistant Head of Finance - Accounting and Pensions), Vera Jones (Democracy and 
Language Service Manager), Sion Huws (Propriety and Elections Manager), Delyth Jones-
Thomas (Investment Manager), Eurig Huw Williams (Human Resources Advisory Services 
Manager), Erin Lloyd (Solicitor), Huw Elfed Roberts (Electoral Services Officer) and Eirian 
Roberts (Democracy Services Officer).   
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Anwen Davies, Annwen Hughes, John Brynmor 
Hughes, Elin Hywel, Dafydd Meurig and Angela Russell. 
 

2. ⁠MINUTES 
 

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of the Council held on 5 December, 
2024 as a true record. 

 
3. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

The Monitoring Officer, on behalf of the chief officers who were present, as a report relating 
to their salaries would be discussed. 
 
He was of the opinion that the officers had a significant interest and, along with the two 
Corporate Directors, the Head of Finance Department, the Head of Democracy Services, 
the Head of Education Department, the Head of Housing and Property Department and the 
Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department, the Monitoring Officer withdrew from 
the meeting during the discussion on the item, as they were not required to be in attendance 
to advise. 

 
4. THE CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Condolences were expressed to the family of Lord Elis-Thomas who had passed away 
recently, and Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn paid tribute to him. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

2 

Condolences were also expressed to the family of Gillian Wynne Thomas, former political 
assistant with the Council, who had passed away last week. 
 
It was noted that Geraint Jarman and Marged Esli had passed away recently, and the 
Council also sympathised with their families. 
 
It was further noted that the Council wished to sympathise with everyone in the county’s 
communities who had lost loved ones recently. 
 
The Council stood in silence as a mark of respect and remembrance. 
 
It was noted that several members of the Council had been ill recently and they were wished 
a full and speedy recovery.  
 
The following were congratulated:- 

• Aneurin Môn Parry, from the Council's Planning Service, on being made Chair of 
the Royal Town Planning Institute Cymru (RTPI) for 2025.  It was noted that Aneurin 
had been working in Planning since 1987, and that he was now Enforcement 
(Planning Service) Team Leader within the Environment Department. 

• Huw Elfed Roberts, Electoral Services Officer, on being appointed Chair of the 
Wales Branch of the Association of Electoral Administrators (AEA), which was the 
professional body for electoral officers in the UK.  

• Ysgol y Gorlan Tremadog on winning Carol yr Ŵyl S4C (Christmas Carol 
competition) this year with a carol composed by Rhys and Anest Glyn. 

• Elain Iorwerth on winning the Crown at the Young Farmers National Eisteddfod back 
in November. 

• Mared Griffiths, Trawsfynydd on winning her first football cap for Wales recently. 
 

⁠The Chair referred to the resignation of Councillor Linda Anne Jones from the Council.  With 
it being International Women's Day on 8 March, she noted that Linda was an excellent 
example of a woman who had led in a field that had traditionally been led by men.  She was 
thanked in earnest for almost 40 years of service, and she was wished the best for the 
future. 
 

5. URGENT ITEMS 

 
None to note. 
 

6. QUESTIONS 
 
(The Cabinet Members' written responses to the questions had been published in advance.) 
 
(A) Question by a Member of the Public 

 
A question by Mr Ieuan Wyn (address provided in accordance with the 
requirements of the Constitution) 
 
It is completely unacceptable that Gwynedd pupils from Welsh-speaking households 
and non-Welsh-speaking households receive less Welsh-medium provision than what 
pupils of Welsh schools in less Welsh communities receive in other parts of our nation. 
Children and young people, parents and communities in Gwynedd deserve schools 

with the most comprehensive Welsh-medium provision being offered.  ⁠This is what 
would be educationally, culturally and socially appropriate.  In light of the fact that the 
Welsh Government has published an education bill and that the language shift is 
intensifying considerably in the county, will Cyngor Gwynedd take this golden and 
crucial opportunity to replace a dated education language policy and introduce an 
ambitious, clear and completely new education language policy for their schools? 
 

Page 8



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

3 

Response from the Cabinet Member for Education, Councillor Dewi Jones 
 
Thank you for your question and for your interest in this important field, a field that is 
important to all of us in this Chamber, I'm sure.  Also, thank you very much for your 
willingness to come to discuss with me a few weeks ago, when we had this exact 
debate.  Yes, Cyngor Gwynedd wants to take this golden and critical opportunity to 
introduce an ambitious, clear and completely new education language policy for our 
schools.  As I am sure you are aware, and as several members in the Chamber today 
are aware, there is significant work already taking place, led by Meirion Prys Jones to 
create a policy , which will be presented in draft form to the Education and Economy 
Scrutiny Committee on 10 April.  Following this there will be opportunities to consult 
with the public, and I am sure there will be a part for you to play in that too. 
 

Supplementary Question from Mr Ieuan Wyn  
 
Thank you for your positive and encouraging reply here today, publicly that the new 
policy will be ambitious, clear and completely new.  As such, can you confirm that the 
new policy will not be merely suggestions and aspirations, but a clear and firm policy 
that will set clear targets for the schools to increase the Welsh-medium provision 
within a specified timescale and milestones, and a policy to be actively implemented 
in a missionary spirit, with the Education Department's guidance and support in terms 
of monitoring, reviewing and offering practical support to the schools? 
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for Education, Councillor Dewi Jones 
 
I can assure you that the policy will be ambitious, and the policy will ensure that we 
as a county play our part in ensuring that we have one million Welsh-speakers by 
2050. 
 

(B) Questions by Elected Members 
 
(1)  Question by Councillor Richard Glyn Roberts 

 
Given that there is a strong feeling locally that council tax policy in the field of empty 
houses and second homes, in some circumstances, imposes a disproportionate and 
unfair taxation burden on Gwynedd residents and given that the Welsh Government 
guidance on council tax on empty houses and second homes states: 
  
It is a matter for a local authority as to whether it uses the discretionary powers in 
sections 12A, 12B or 13A to reduce council tax liability in respect of a premium or to 
reduce the standard council tax liability, or both, as appropriate. This policy should 
cover a range of situations where a local authority would consider using its 
discretionary powers, including properties that do not meet the criteria to be classified 
as non-domestic.  To ensure fairness and transparency, a local authority should have 
a clear policy on whether and how these powers are used. However, the authority 
should consider each case individually after weighing up the circumstances of the 
case. 
 
Does Gwynedd have such a clear policy with a view to using discretionary powers to 
reduce the rate of basic council tax (e.g. in the case of self-catering holiday units, 
without planning permission to become permanent households, which fail to meet the 
182-day letting threshold) and how the authority evaluates the circumstances of each 
case individually with a view on this matter and the associated matter of the premium?  
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for Finance, Councillor Huw Wyn Jones 
 
This is what the Council's position is at the moment.  We enforce the law and any 
statutory exceptions we have to apply according to the law.  We do not make any 

Page 9



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

4 

discretionary exceptions at this time.  The concern is that we would create a precedent 
which could come back to bite us, unless we have a completely clear policy.  
Exceptions, of course, are difficult because every situation is different.  Creating a 
clear policy, that does not set a precedent, is difficult and please feel free to come 
back to us to discuss this, and to perhaps help us try to formulate some sort of clear 
policy on this issue.  The door is not closed, but at the moment trying to find a way to 
create an exceptions policy without setting a precedent that brings problems is 
difficult, therefore anyone here today is welcome to contact me to discuss this to see 
if we can formulate a policy that works, but it is difficult because every case is a little 
different.  I receive emails about this issue quite frequently.   
 
Supplementary Question from Councillor Richard Glyn Roberts 
 
Let us therefore confirm that by intention rather than by default we do not have a 
policy at the moment and that the door is open to possibly making a policy in the future 
so that genuine local family farms, social enterprises, local holiday accommodation 
businesses that fail to meet the threshold do not get a surprise bill for £5,000 instead 
of £2,000?  So, the door is open for us to discuss that kind of policy? 
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for Finance, Councillor Huw Wyn Jones 
 
The list of exceptions you have given demonstrates how difficult it is to create a policy 
that will not come back to bite us in the future.  The door is open.  Please contact me 
– I am very happy to discuss with you, but it is very difficult to create a policy in this 
field.  Certainly, no policy will please everyone. 

 
(2) Question by Councillor Rhys Tudur 

 
Given that an individual can be identified as someone in need of housing for several 
areas simultaneously on the Housing Associations' list or the Common Housing 
Register, thus adding and multiplying the 'demand for housing' figure for all those 
areas they have shown an interest to live in; 
 
And given that the 'demand for housing' data is based on an interest in an area rather 
than the need of its population and is therefore misleading to the extent that it justifies 
all developments everywhere despite them being incompatible and despite the 
absence of population growth in our County; 
 
What willingness does this Council have to identify data of the actual need of the 
population of the area where a planning application is located rather than consider all 
the county 'interest' that has been stated for the area? 
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for Housing and Property, Councillor Paul 
Rowlinson 
 
Thank you for raising this important point. It is important that all of us understand the 
exact nature of the need for social housing and what the figures tell us, particularly 
those who make decisions on planning issues.  I am confident that the data we publish 
on housing need accurately reflects the true need.  The figures on the Open Data 
section of the Council’s website notes the “Housing Need” in every area, defining 
housing need according to the number of applications for a social house.  The true 
housing need may be even higher than this as some don’t apply, thinking they are 
unlikely to get a house, but it is not possible to measure this at present.  In the data 
the county is split into 144 areas, approximately two areas in each ward on average 
therefore they are typically very small.  When someone is searching for a house, as 
a rule they are willing to consider several areas.  Applicants are encouraged to note 
on their application form all the areas where they would be willing to live in order to 
maximise their chance of being offered a home e.g. if someone is in search of a house 

Page 10



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

5 

in Bangor, they can apply for nine areas within the city.  Within the Llanystumdwy 
ward, there are five areas.   These areas are very small, some are just one village.  
 

Should someone add together the figures for all areas, the total would be misleading 
as it would count the same applicants multiple times. Perhaps this is where the 
confusion has originated.  However, the published data does not do this; the published 
figures for the number of applicants on the waiting register, over 2,000, and the 
number of individuals on the waiting register, over 4,000, are correct.  There are a 
significant number of people and children on the list, and it is important to build more 
social housing to meet the need and reduce these numbers. 
 
When a planning application is submitted to develop social housing, the Strategic 
Housing Unit provides observations, including the number of applications for a house 
in the area and the types of houses needed.  This method of measuring the need is a 
nationally recognised method and this information is used to prove whether a local 
need exists to justify the application.    
 
If we only counted those living in the village, this would not reflect the true need.  
 
Some applicants on the waiting list live in the village itself, some in nearby areas, 
some may come from the area originally but now live far away and wish to move back 
home. Some may have had to move from the area previously due to the lack of 
affordable housing and are keen to return home, and we should help them do that. 
Perhaps others are homeless, temporarily staying at a hostel or a bed and breakfast 
far from the village and are keen to return home.  Others must move to another 
community because of a need for a particular type of accommodation, e.g. a property 
for older people, flats etc., which are not available in every community.  People also 
often move out of necessity rather than desire (e.g. moving to be closer to their family 
to provide or receive support, moving for employment, education or training reasons, 
moving to flee violence or threats of violence – and these are far more common than 
one would think). These reasons are recognised in law and therefore the Council must 
reflect them in its allocation arrangements.  
 
Gwynedd's Common Housing Letting Policy prioritises individuals and families who 
have resided for five years or more in the Community Council area for all allocations 
made through the register to ensure that priority is given to individuals with a 
connection to the particular area but, as I have explained, attempting to define the 
local need for housing by restricting it to those who currently live there is misleading. 
 
No one tries to confine property buyers to the villages where they already live; we 
should not seek to impose similar restrictions on those in need of social housing.  
 
Supplementary Question from Councillor Rhys Tudur 
 
Given that the data that we currently gather is the county need data, and also area 
data which – and I'm reading a note here on the data itself that states "The housing 
need data is a record of each area an individual has selected on the application".  So, 
in view of that, may I ask what willingness does this Council have to collect data for 
how many individuals have selected an area as their number one top priority, and also 
how many individuals, who live in an area where there is already a planning 
application, are in need of housing?  That data will empower us to measure where the 
people in need of housing are and will empower the data we have on the need locally. 
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for Housing and Property, Councillor Paul 
Rowlinson 
 
Well, I have already explained why it would not be appropriate to state the number 
who live in the village, in the area.  With regard to the question about first choice, 

Page 11



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

6 

thinking about the original question, we did consider whether it would be wise to 
include that additional information to help the decision-makers, but it was decided that 
it was not appropriate.  When allocating houses, we do not take into account the order 
people have stated anyway. Someone who has noted the village as their second 
choice is considered the same as someone who has selected it as first choice, and 
also many people do not indicate their choice when filling out the form, but tick maybe 
half a dozen boxes for where they want to live.  They do not place them in order of 
priority and therefore, if they are in the village, they have to accept the offer.  If they 
refuse, they fall down the list therefore people do not submit applications for housing 
unless they are genuinely willing to live somewhere, for example, if someone wanted 
a house in Bangor, they might be willing to live in any of the 9 areas in Bangor.  People 
do not list places in order of priority on the forms, and it would not be possible for us 
to provide robust data in that regard.  There are also practical problems, and you 
would have to go through the system checking everyone's first choice.  There are 
hundreds on the list.  In my ward alone in Rachub there are 177 so there are practical 
problems involved in doing that, and this is not something that would give you any 
meaningful data I'm afraid. 
 

(3) Question by Councillor Gwynfor Owen 
 
Three years ago I asked a question in the Council "What is the Council planning to do 
about the problem of speeding in our communities? 
 
I received a reply at the time from the Cabinet holder, former Councillor Gareth 
Griffiths, saying that the 20mph speed limit would be coming in soon and that it would 
hopefully improve the situation. 
 
The reality is that the situation has not improved at all. I receive complaints 
everywhere in my ward starting in Llandecwyn, on to Talsarnau, Glan y Wern, Ynys, 
Harlech, Llanfair and Llanbedr.  Would the Council be willing to examine alternative 
ways to prevent the speeding that is creating genuine concern to so many of my 
constituents? 
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for the Environment, Councillor Craig ab 
Iago 
 
I share your concerns about the speeding.  Over the years, in my role as a Councillor, 
I have managed to reduce the driving speed limits on roads in my area.  I have had 
several conversations with many officers from the Council regarding this, and the 
reality from the perspective as a councillor is that there is not much the Council can 
do to change people's behaviour on the roads.  If you have any suggestions or ideas, 
I would welcome a conversation about them any time.  I think it would be worth taking 
the matter before a scrutiny committee at some point, and I would welcome a 
conversation with you about the matter. 
 
Supplementary Question from Councillor Gwynfor Owen 
 
Thank you for the comprehensive answer.  Although the written response is full of 
facts, only the last paragraph answers my question, and although I am incredibly 
grateful for this response, I would like to ask for further assurance that the Council 
officers will be willing to discuss every option with me for slowing down traffic on roads 
within my ward. Travelling through Wales and beyond, one sees all sorts of things 
being used to slow down traffic e.g. narrowing of lanes, creating crossing points, 
flashing signs or something to remind drivers of the dangers of speeding, and it would 
be nice to see some of these options being used in my ward.  As such, can you assure 
me that the Council officers will be willing to discuss with me all possible options for 
slowing down traffic within my ward? 
 

Page 12



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

7 

Response from the Cabinet Member for the Environment, Councillor Craig ab 
Iago 
 
I am happy to discuss with you.  Any other members are also welcome to contact me 
to have a chat about speeding in their ward. 
 

(4) Question by Councillor Jina Gwyrfai 
 
What consideration is given to the 'conservation area' designation when considering 

planning applications, particularly applications to install solar panels and heat pumps? 

 
Response from the Cabinet Member for the Environment, Councillor Craig ab 
Iago 
 
The question is very technical.  I have nothing to add to what is contained in the written 

response. ⁠Is the answer of assistance to you? 
 

⁠⁠Supplementary Question from Councillor Jina Gwyrfai 
 
From the answer, it is good that special consideration is given to the appearance of 
conservation areas whilst every planning application is addressed individually, which 
is fair enough.  However, the principle of then looking after conservation is at risk in 
my view, therefore I would like to ask how these two important principles can be 
reconciled to ensure that the cumulative result of permitting a large number of solar 
panels etc., is not the destruction of conservation areas?  There must be some kind 
of monitoring. 
 
Response from the Cabinet Member for the Environment, Councillor Craig ab 
Iago 
 
I would agree with you, but again the question is a technical question.  I am happy to 
have a chat with you and the officers to find a solution that truly answers your question. 
 

7. ANNUAL REPORT – THE COUNCIL WORKFORCE'S PAY POLICY 
 
The Chair of the Chief Officers Appointment Committee, Councillor Ioan Thomas, presented 
a report recommending that the Council approved the recommendation of the Chief Officers 
Appointment Committee to adopt the Pay Policy for 2025/26. 
 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and offer observations. 
 
Referring to the observations of the statutory officers at the end of the report, a member 
questioned whether it would have been appropriate to seek legal and financial opinion from 
outside this authority in this instance, given the Monitoring Officer and Statutory Finance 
Officer's interest in the matter?  In response, the Chief Executive noted that it was not the 
Monitoring Officer nor the Statutory Finance Officer who had submitted the observations in 
this case, but their deputies, but this should have been made clear in the report. 
 
A member asked if the Council should be adopting the Pay Policy if there was a point of 
concern around propriety? In response, the Chief Executive noted that there was no 
concern around propriety, and that the record of this item would state clearly that the 
observations had been submitted by the deputies of the two statutory officers. 
 
RESOLVED to adopt the Council Workforce's Pay Policy for 2025/26. 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

8 

8. ADAPTATIONS TO 'A CARING GWYNEDD' PROJECTS – CYNGOR GWYNEDD PLAN 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being, Councillor Dilwyn Morgan, 
presented a report asking the Council to approve the addition of a Domiciliary Care project 
to the areas to be prioritised at a strategic level as part of the Cyngor Gwynedd Plan 2023-
28.  
 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and make observations.   
 
It was enquired whether the Council had a fair and firm system of referring complaints to 
the attention of the Care Service.  In response, the Statutory Director of Social Services 
noted that:- 

• The Council had a system for listening to complaints and learning lessons, and for 
receiving encouraging and positive comments as well. 

• An officer from the Children's Department and officer from the Adults Department 
dealt with complaints and representations specifically, and reported regularly to the 
Cabinet and the Care Scrutiny Committee. 

• This area was also included as part of his annual report to the Council, and he would 
be happy to discuss further with the member if they wished. 

 
RESOLVED to approve the addition of the following project to the areas to be 
prioritised at a strategic level as part of the Cyngor Gwynedd Plan 2023-28.  
 
Ensuring that full and timely support is available to support people to live at home 
 
To ensure that people can live their best lives, we must make prompt and easily 
accessible support available for individuals and their families. 
 
We will implement plans to:  
 
•   Ensure that we acknowledge the value of family and unpaid carers by making sure 

that we can easily identify them and offer them full support with caring. 
•   Reduce our waiting lists for new domiciliary care packages, ensuring no one in 

Gwynedd waits longer than 28 days following a care assessment. 
 

9. 2025-26 BUDGET  
 

Before the Council began discussing this item, the Chair noted, in line with the Constitution, 
that the Head of Finance Department must receive notice of any amendment to the budget 
in writing in advance, and that this amendment must lead to a balanced budget, if it was to 
be discussed.  All members of the Council had been reminded of this the previous week, 
and as the Head of Finance Department had not received any notice of an amendment by 
the specified deadline, it would not be possible for the Council to consider any amendment 
to the budget. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance, Councillor Huw Wyn Jones presented:- 

• A report recommending a budget for the Council to approve for 2025/26;  

• The draft decision on the Council Tax based on the Cabinet's recommendation to 
the Council (based on an increase of 8.66%), along with tables showing the Council 
Tax level and the increase per community.  
 

 
The Cabinet Member thanked the staff of the Finance Department for all their work in 
preparing the budget. 
 
The Leader thanked the Cabinet Member for his presentation and for making the case for 
the budget clear.  She thanked the officers for guiding the Council through the process, and 
for their expertise and their skills.  She also thanked the members of the Governance and 

Page 14



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

9 

Audit Committee for their work scrutinising the budget, and thanked her fellow members for 
attending the budget workshops.  She further noted:- 

• ⁠That the budget reflected the Council's values as it prioritised the most vulnerable 
people in society by protecting care for children and adults social services, 
earmarking funding to try to reduce waiting lists for care, and protected schools from 
cuts next year. 

• The pressures on the services increased every year with the county's population 
ageing, more people requiring care, more vulnerable children requiring care and 
more people becoming homeless. 

• Despite the increase in the demand for services, the Council had to set a balanced 
budget. 

• As a result of pressing on the Senedd Cymru Finance Committee through the Welsh 
Local Government Association, a guaranteed minimum was secured for the 
settlement, otherwise the situation for Gwynedd would have been even more 
perilous.  However, this was not a long-term solution, and for the benefit of the 
people of Gwynedd, we had to ensure fair funding to local government. 

 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and make observations. 
 
A member enquired how confident the Head of Finance Department was that the budget 
was robust and that the Council would not have to make use of balances again this year.  
In response, the Head of Finance Department referred to the contents of Appendix 10 to 
the report, namely the statement he was required to complete as a Statutory Finance Officer 
on the robustness of the estimates in accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government 
Act 2003. 
 
Regarding the part of the question relating to the use of balances, the Head of Finance 
Department stated that he believed that the additional resources included as part of the bids 
(Appendix 2) would go a long way to addressing the financial deficit and the forecast 
overspend in 2024/25, and anticipated that such a situation would not happen again next 
year.  Nevertheless, he could not give any guarantee that there would be no overspend 
again in 2025/26. 
 
The Head of Finance Department confirmed, having considered all the risks and mitigation 
steps, that he was of the opinion that the Council's Budget for 2025/26 was sound, adequate 
and achievable. 
 
Members made the following observations:– 

• Local government was not funded properly and the Council Tax system would never 
work for our constituents.  A local income tax would be a fairer system, and the 
member believed that this should be explored further. 

• The financial deficit was increasing year on year, and the Council's expenditure 
would need to be increased by £25.8m in 2025/26 just to remain in the same 
position. 

• The two governments were increasingly moving towards regressive taxation, rather 
than progressive taxation.  In 1996, 81.8% of the Council's budget was paid by 
central government.  By 2009/10 the figure had decreased to 78.4%, and by now it 
had fallen almost a further 10% to 69.5%. 

• As a consequence of 15 years of austerity, public services were on their knees, and 
there were higher than ever levels of homeless people and children suffering from 
diseases, levels not seen since Victorian times. 

• The Westminster Government was managing to find money to pay for a war while 
cutting the welfare state.  

• There had been a promise of a "partnership in force" between the UK Government 
and the Welsh Government, led by the Labour Party, but that had been an empty 
promise. 

Page 15



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

10 

• The Council Tax was an unfair and regressive tax which ensured that the wealthiest 
people in society did not pay their share.  We possibly needed to shout louder about 
this in the next financial year, and try to persuade other councils to do the same. 

• The Council faced difficult decisions, but those decisions ensured that we were able 
to support the most vulnerable people in our society, and also the next generation.   

• The amount of money that came to Gwynedd from the Welsh Government 
depended on the county's population figures, which were decreasing, and it was 
hoped that Ambition North Wales were doing everything within their ability to create 
jobs in Gwynedd, so that people did not have to leave the county in search of work. 

 
It was noted that the proposed increase of 8.66% in the Council Tax carried through to the 
Council Tax Premium and imposed a disproportionate and unfair taxation burden on some 
people born and bred in Gwynedd, such as family farms, social enterprises and genuine 
local holiday accommodation businesses, etc.  The member enquired how difficult would it 
be to introduce additional exemptions in a clear policy, rather than dealing with situations 
on a case-by-case basis where there was no real clarity. In response, it was noted:- 

• ⁠That the Council's policy was to only allow statutory exemptions. 

• There was a part of the legislation that allowed the Council to consider reducing 
Council Tax bills, whether for a group of taxpayers or for individual taxpayers. 

• In cases of genuine hardship, they tended to consider discretion for not only the 
Premium, but for the whole Council Tax. 

• In considering the situation of groups of taxpayers, the Council had to ensure that 
the matter was addressed equally and in line with the legislation, and it could not 
charge a Premium on one cohort of people and not charge another cohort, unless 
there was a clear explanation and justification for doing so.  As the Cabinet Member 
had stated in response to a question on this exact issue earlier on in the meeting, 
there was a risk of creating a precedent, and that the precedent could come back to 
bite us unless we had an explicit policy. 

• Although it would be very difficult to produce a policy, it was not impossible, and we 
could look at this further and have a policy in place. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Education noted that he was pleased that the schools budget was 
being protected in 2025/26, but the county's schools, like many other sectors in society, 
were under immense pressure, and headteachers were finding it difficult to set a balanced 
budget which subsequently led to staff in some schools being made redundant. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being noted the following:- 

• That the difficult work that had taken place to weigh up the cuts against increasing 
the Council Tax had been a long and tough path. 

• The budget presented invested in the most vulnerable people. 

• 82% of the Council's overspend came from the care field, but it was not truly 
overspend, but rather underfunding of all the care required, over a number of years. 

• With the demand for care increasing year on year, the staff were working very hard 
seven days a week, every day of the year. 

• Although the Council was now providing just over 9,000 of care hours weekly, this 
was not adequate, and there were still people on the waiting lists.  

• They could not give assurance that there would not be overspend in the care field 
again next year, as they could not predict what the demand for services would be, 
but with this budget the Council would be taking the reasonable step towards 
protecting the most vulnerable people in the county. 

 
A registered vote was called for on the motion. 
 
In accordance with Procedural Rules, the following vote on the motion was recorded:- 

 

In 
favour 

45 Councillors:- Craig ab Iago, Menna Baines, Beca Brown, Stephen Churchman, 
Glyn Daniels, Elwyn Edwards, Elfed Wyn ap Elwyn, Alan Jones Evans, Gwilym 

Page 16



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

11 

Evans, Delyth Lloyd Griffiths, Jina Gwyrfai, Medwyn Hughes, Iwan Huws, Nia 
Wyn Jeffreys, Berwyn Parry Jones, Dawn Lynne Jones, Dewi Jones, Gwilym 
Jones, Gareth Tudor Jones, Huw Wyn Jones, June Jones, Cai Larsen, Beth 
Lawton, Dilwyn Morgan, Linda Morgan, Edgar Wyn Owen, Gwynfor Owen, Llio 
Elenid Owen, John Pughe, Rheinallt Puw, Arwyn Herald Roberts, Beca 
Roberts, Elfed P Roberts, Meryl Roberts, Richard Glyn Roberts, Huw Llwyd 
Rowlands, Paul Rowlinson, Dyfrig Siencyn, Ioan Thomas, Menna Trenholme, 
Rhys Tudur, Einir Wyn Williams, Elfed Williams, Sasha Williams and Sian 
Williams. 
 

Again
st  

12 Councillors:- Dylan Fernley, Louise Hughes, Anne Lloyd Jones, Elwyn Jones, 
Dewi Owen, Gareth Coj Parry, John Pughe Roberts, Peter Thomas, Rob 
Triggs, Hefin Underwood, Gareth Williams and Gruffydd Williams. 
 

Abste
ntions  

2 Councillors Eryl Jones-Williams and Nigel Pickavance. 
 

 
The Chair noted that the motion had carried. 
 
RESOLVED 
1. To approve the recommendations of the Cabinet as noted in the report:- 

(a) To establish a budget of £356,815,330 for 2025/26 to be funded by a 
£248,389,720 Government Grant and £104,425,610 of Council Tax income 
(which is an increase of 8.66%). 

(b) To establish a capital programme of £53,736,190 for 2025/26 to be funded 
from the sources noted in Appendix 4 of the report presented to the 
Council. 

2.  That it be noted that the Cabinet Member for Finance, in a decision notice dated 
30 December 2024, approved the calculation of the following amounts for 
2025/26 in accordance with Regulations made under Section 33 (5) of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 ("The Act"):- 

 
(a)  56,842.05 being the amount calculated in accordance with the Local Authorities 

(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (Wales) Regulations 1995 as amended, as its 
Council Tax Base for the year. 

 
(b)  Parts of the Council’s area – Community Tax Base -  

 

Aberdaron      621.88    Llanddeiniolen  1,904.89  

Aberdyfi    1,194.77   Llandderfel   528.88  

Abergwyngregyn      121.90   Llanegryn     174.80  

Abermaw (Barmouth)    1,317.52   Llanelltyd     310.17 

Arthog      695.76   Llanengan  2,751.39  

Y Bala      818.83   Llanfair     362.68  

Bangor    4,244.36   Llanfihangel y Pennant     251.76  

Beddgelert      350.40   Llanfrothen     237.36  

Betws Garmon      146.24   Llangelynnin     484.85  

Bethesda    1,765.16   Llangywer     159.19  

Bontnewydd      463.21   Llanllechid     371.67  

Botwnnog      484.06   Llanllyfni  1,471.45  
Brithdir and 
Llanfachreth      474.36   Llannor     951.51  

Bryncrug      355.42   Llanrug  1,154.25  

Buan      244.98   Llanuwchllyn     334.68  

Caernarfon    3,721.81   Llanwnda     857.37  

Clynnog Fawr      489.83   Llanycil     213.75  

Page 17



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

12 

Corris      319.67   Llanystumdwy     937.44  

Criccieth    1,016.89   Maentwrog     319.62  

Dolbenmaen      652.91   Mawddwy     378.38  

Dolgellau    1,315.09   Nefyn  1,696.20  

Dyffryn Ardudwy      873.94   Pennal     238.53  

Y Felinheli    1,202.04   Penrhyndeudraeth     838.59  

Ffestiniog    1,842.24   Pentir  1,310.58  

Y Ganllwyd        88.00   Pistyll     298.51  

Harlech      870.85   Porthmadog  2,304.34  
Trefor a 
Llanaelhaearn      475.75   Pwllheli  1,866.35  

Llanbedr      359.87   Talsarnau     365.44  

Llanbedrog      882.45   Trawsfynydd     528.93  

Llanberis      814.21   Tudweiliog     520.39  

Llandwrog    1,083.91   Tywyn  1,776.31  

Llandygai    1,038.17    Waunfawr      595.31  

 
being the amounts calculated as the amounts of its Council Tax Base for the year for 
dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more special items relate. 
 
3. That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2025/26 in 
accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Act:- 

   
(a)  £581,749,890 Being the aggregate of the amounts which the 

Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
32(2)(a) to (e) of the Act (gross expenditure). 
 

(b)  £221,986,500 Being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 32 
(3)(a) to (c) of the Act (income). 
 

(c)  £359,763,390 Being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) 
above exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 32(4) of the Act, as its budget requirement 
for the year (net budget). 
 

    (ch)  £247,894,058 Being the aggregate of the sums which the Council 
estimates will be payable during the year into its 
fund in respect of the National Non-Domestic Rates 
and Revenue Support Grant, less the estimated cost 
to the Council of discretionary non-domestic rate 
relief granted. 
 

(d)  £1,968.07 Being the amount at 3(c) above less the amount at 
3(ch) above, all divided by the amount at 2(a) above, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 33(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (Cyngor Gwynedd tax and 
average community council tax). 
 

    (dd)  £3,443,721.04 Being the aggregate amount of all special items 
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (community 
council precepts). 
 

(e)  £1,907.49 Being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given 

Page 18



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

13 

by dividing the amount at 3(dd) above by the 
amount at 2(a) above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the 
basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for 
dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
special item relates (Band D for Cyngor Gwynedd 
tax only). 

 
(f)  For parts of the Council’s area -  

 

Aberdaron     1,935.63    Llanddeiniolen     1,923.76  

Aberdyfi     1,945.61   Llandderfel     1,935.85  

Abergwyngregyn     1,944.41   Llanegryn     1,952.40  
Abermaw 
(Barmouth)     1,960.16   Llanelltyd     1,946.18  

Arthog     1,929.05   Llanengan     1,931.11  

Y Bala     1,942.30   Llanfair     1,957.12  

Bangor     2,049.15   
Llanfihangel y 
Pennant     1,957.54  

Beddgelert     1,948.02   Llanfrothen     1,961.42  

Betws Garmon     1,929.03   Llangelynnin     1,937.20  

Bethesda     1,971.14   Llangywer     1,938.90  

Bontnewydd     1,947.43   Llanllechid     1,953.82  

Botwnnog     1,920.92   Llanllyfni     1,943.51  
Brithdir a 
Llanfachreth     1,932.79   Llannor     1,929.56  

Bryncrug     1,945.05   Llanrug     1,994.13  

Buan     1,925.86   Llanuwchllyn     1,957.69  

Caernarfon     2,022.94   Llanwnda     1,946.10  

Clynnog Fawr     1,978.94   Llanycil     1,929.71  

Corris     1,966.93   Llanystumdwy     1,929.36  

Criccieth     1,966.49   Maentwrog     1,928.99  

Dolbenmaen     1,935.06   Mawddwy     1,942.11  

Dolgellau     1,966.04   Nefyn     1,963.50  

Dyffryn Ardudwy     1,970.42   Pennal     1,982.95  

Y Felinheli     1,951.27   Penrhyndeudraeth     2,028.65  

Ffestiniog     2,043.19   Pentir     1,949.46  

Y Ganllwyd     1,944.42   Pistyll     1,947.69  

Harlech     2,005.10   Porthmadog     1,939.46  
Trefor and 
Llanaelhaearn     1,960.04   Pwllheli     1,977.14  

Llanbedr     1,988.07   Talsarnau     2,000.53  

Llanbedrog     1,941.49   Trawsfynydd     1,945.30  

Llanberis     1,958.07   Tudweiliog     1,926.71  

Llandwrog     1,983.73   Tywyn     1,966.57  

Llandygai     1,944.96    Waunfawr      1,927.65  

 
being the amounts given by adding to the amount at 3(e) above the amounts of the 
special item or items relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council’s area 
mentioned above divided in each case by the amount of 2(b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its 
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more 
special items relate. 
 

Page 19



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

14 

(ff)  In respect of parts of the Council’s area, the figures noted in Appendix 1, being the 
amounts obtained by multiplying the sums specified in 3(f) above by the number 
which, according to the proportions set out in Section 5 (1) of the Act, applies to 
dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which according 
to those proportions applies to dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 36 (1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken 
into account for the year for the categories of dwelling houses listed in different 
valuation bands. 

 
4.  That it be noted that for the year 2025/26 the Police and Crime Commissioner for North 

Wales have stated the following amounts in a precept issued to the Council, in 
accordance with Section 40 of the Act for each of the categories of dwelling houses 
shown below: 
 

  
Band 

A 
Band 

B 
Band 

C 
Band 

D 
Band 

E 
Band 

F 
Band 

G 
Band 

H Band  I 

  248.10 289.45 330.80 372.15 454.85 537.55 620.25 744.30 868.35 

 
5.  Having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3(ff) and 4 above, that 

the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Act, hereby sets the amounts noted 
in Appendix 2 as the Council Tax for the year 2025/26 for each category of dwelling 
houses shown in the Appendix. 

 
10. CAPITAL STRATEGY 2025-26 (INCLUDING INVESTMENT AND BORROWING 

STRATEGIES) 
 
The Finance Cabinet Member, Councillor Huw Wyn Jones, presented a report providing a 
high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management 
activity contribute to the provision of local public services. The report also provided an 
overview of how associated risks were managed, and the implications for future financial 
sustainability. 
 
In presenting the report, the Cabinet Member drew attention to paragraph 6.4 of Appendix 

C to the report ' ⁠Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Considerations' which had 
been amended following Councillor Cai Larsen's notice of motion to the Council meeting of 
3 October, 2024.  He noted that the Strategy confirmed that the Council was committed to 
being a responsible investor, giving consideration to all the environmental, social and 
governance factors when investing. 
 
RESOLVED to accept the report and to approve the Capital Strategy for 2025/26. 
 

11. ESTABLISHING THE NORTH WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE JOINT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
The Monitoring Officer presented a report:- 

• noting that statutory guidance and existing practice pointed towards the six councils 
in North Wales establishing a joint overview scrutiny model so that there was a 
single dedicated body which was immersed in the work of the Corporate Joint 
Committee (CJC); 

• ⁠listing a series of recommendations that provided for scrutiny arrangements for the 
Joint Committee. 

 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and make observations. 
 
A member expressed dissatisfaction that appointing the members of the Joint Committee 
based on the political balance of the individual councils excluded some smaller groups 
across North Wales from reaching the threshold. It was also suggested that having a Joint 

Page 20



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

15 

Committee of 18 members (namely three members from each council, rather than two as 
proposed) would give smaller groups a better chance of having a seat on the Joint 
Committee.  In response, it was noted:- 

• That this concern would be conveyed. 

• The door had not closed, and it would be possible to revise or further develop the 
model after some experience of running these arrangements. 

 
In response to questions from members, it was explained that should the recommendations 
in this report be adopted, Cyngor Gwynedd's seat allocation on the Joint Committee would 
be adopted by the full Council in May as part of its annual review of the Council's political 
balance. Looking at the numbers and the political split, and without prejudicing any decision, 
it appeared at present that there would be 1 seat for the Plaid Cymru Group and 1 seat for 
the Independent Group. 
 
The Leader noted that although she agreed with many of the points, the procedure of the 
CJC, which meant regionalising from Anglesey to Wrexham, was not a democratic method 
of making decisions.  However, as this procedure had been forced on us, it was important 
to ensure a way of scrutinising the work of the CJC and holding it to account. 
 
RESOLVED 
1. To establish the North Wales Corporate Joint Committee Joint Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee with the Terms of Reference in Appendix 1 to the report 
presented to the Council. 

2. To agree that the powers of local Scrutiny Committees provided for under The 
Corporate Joint Committees (General) (No. 2) (Wales) Regulations 2022 shall be 
retained.   

3. To agree that the political balance of Cyngor Gwynedd’s nominees to the joint 
overview and scrutiny committee (JOSC) will reflect the membership of Cyngor 
Gwynedd rather than the membership of all North Wales councils in aggregate. 

4. To agree that the secretariat for the JOSC will be provided by the CJC in 
accordance with the Terms of Reference. 

 
12. COMMUNITY REVIEWS UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (DEMOCRACY) (WALES) 

ACT 2013 
 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate and Legal Services, Councillor Llio Elenid Owen, 
presented a report:- 

• noting that the Council, on 7 March 2024, had approved the holding of community 
reviews under sections 25 and 31 of the Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) 
Act 2013. 

• reporting back on the outcome of the initial consultation and investigation period on 
those community reviews; and  

• asking the Council to approve Draft Proposals for further public consultation. 
 

RESOLVED to approve the Draft Proposals under sections 25 and 31 of the Local 
Government (Democracy)(Wales) Act 2013 for the purposes of consultation. 

 
13. AMENDING THE CONSTITUTION – CABINET PORTFOLIOS 

 
Submitted – a report by the Monitoring Officer reporting formally that in accordance with 
Part 5 of the Constitution, the Council Leader had acted to rearrange the Cabinet Members' 
Portfolios. 
 
A member commented that the majority of the Cabinet members were from the Arfon area, 
and that only one represented Meirionnydd.  It was also noted that the Cabinet Members 
from Dwyfor lived near to Arfon.  As such, the member queried how it could be ensured that 
there was no unconscious prejudice when making decisions based on geography, and to 

Page 21



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

16 

what extent could the Cabinet avoid lack of compassion with the outer-most parts of the 

County, which had the most dispersed population?  ⁠In response, the Chief Executive noted:- 

• That he would not pass comment on the content of the observation as this was a 
report for information regarding changing the Constitution, and it was a matter for 
the Leader to appoint her Cabinet. 

• As the one leading the Council's staff, he noted the observation and could assure 
the member that no unconscious geographical bias existed from the perspective of 
the staff. 

 
A member thanked the four Cabinet Members who had stood down earlier this term on a 
matter of principle for their service.  It was noted that those members had called for a public 
inquiry and independent review of the matter, and they welcomed the fact that this was now 
taking place. 
 
RESOLVED to accept the report. 
 

14. CONSTITUTION CHANGES – NEW CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES (SECTION 17) 
 
The Monitoring Officer set the context and the Solicitor presented a report:- 

• noting that the Procurement Act 2023 that had come into force on 24 February, 2025 
meant that the Council must review and amend its internal procurement rules 
contained within the Contract Procedure Rules to reflect the change in legislation in 
order to ensure compliance with the act. 

• asking the Council to amend the Constitution by adopting the new Contract Rules 
(Section 17) shown in Appendix 1 to the report. 

 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions and make observations. 
 
The regulations were welcomed, and everyone working in the field of Procurement were 
wished well. 
 
It was noted that there were not many references in the Regulations to language skills in 
subcontracting, and suggested that a golden opportunity was being missed here. It was 
accepted that there were contracting rules relating to discrimination, but the law stated that 
priority can be given in different circumstances in achieving a legitimate aim such as 
promoting the Welsh language. Accordingly, an amendment was proposed to delay the 
adoption of the Regulations until the Language Committee had had the opportunity to 
scrutinise this.  In response, it was noted:- 

• That this was a matter of compliance with legislation that was now in force, and that 
the Council must have regulations that aligned with this legislation. 

• The amendment related to procurement policy rather than the legal system, i.e. what 
the Council buys rather than how the Council buys it. 

• This may be an issue to be raised in the Language Committee in terms of how 
procurement reflects language requirements, etc. 

• This did not close the door on conducting further reviews in the future. 
 
The Chief Executive noted that the Language Committee was free to look into any subject, 
but that would not change the decision. 
 
Officers were asked if they could be confident that the policy would help keep the benefit 
local, and at what level of tender was it required to go out on Sell to Wales?  In response, it 
was noted:- 

• That the essence of the new regulations was transparency, and that information 
about tenders below the previously existing high thresholds must now be advertised. 

• The approach to tendering was then a matter of choice, but this was a legal 
framework, which asked for much more at a much lower level in terms of awareness 
of tenders and also procurement processes. 

 

Page 22



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

17 

RESOLVED to adopt the new Contract Procedure Rules (Section 17) shown in 
Appendix 1 of the report submitted to the Council. 
 

15. COMMITTEES CALENDAR 2025-26 
 
The Head of Democracy Services presented a calendar of dates of Council meetings for 
2025/26. 
 
Further to the content of the report, it was noted that the Police Authority and the Fire and 
Rescue Authority had also been consulted on the draft version of the committees calendar.  
A response had been received from the Police Authority, and the officers were working on 
the one date which clashed.  The Fire and Rescue Authority had not responded, and the 
officers would go after this.  
 
RESOLVED to adopt the Committees Calendar for 2025/26 in Appendix 1 of the report 
submitted to the Council. 
 

16. NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
(A) The following notice of motion was submitted by Councillor Elwyn Edwards, in accordance 

with Section 4.19 of the Constitution, and it was seconded:-  
 
Cyngor Gwynedd calls on the Labour Government in Westminster to transfer the Justice 
Jurisdiction to the Senedd in Cardiff, and calls on all Welsh Councils for their support. 
 
The member set out the context to his motion, noting:- 

• In 2017, the Labour Party established a commission to look at the possibility of 
transferring responsibility for the Justice Service in Wales to the Welsh Government.  
The commission was led by Lord Thomas of Cwmgiedd, the former chief officer for 
justice in England and Wales, and his firm recommendation to the government was 
that 'there was a real need to devolve the Justice Service in Wales to Wales and 
establish a separate Welsh jurisdiction. 

• Scotland and Northern Ireland have their own Justice system, but Wales is attached 
to England, and Wales is the only country in the world that has the legislation, but 
not the authority to implement this. 

• Although there is increasing demand to create a separate Welsh Jurisdiction and to 
devolve powers to the Welsh Government, neither the Tory nor Labour 
Governments had made any shift towards achieving this. 

 

⁠The proposer further noted that he should have included 'and also call on the Welsh 
Government for its support' as part of his motion. 
 
Another member proposed an amendment to that end.  The proposer and seconder agreed 
to the amendment and there was no objection to this from the floor.  
 
RESOLVED to adopt the amended motion, namely:-  
Cyngor Gwynedd calls on the Labour Government in Westminster to transfer the 
Justice Jurisdiction to the Senedd in Cardiff, and calls on the Welsh Government 
and all Welsh Councils for their support. 
 

(B) The following notice of motion was submitted by Councillor Elfed Wyn ap Elwyn in 
accordance with Section 4.19 of the Constitution, and it was seconded:-  
 
The Council calls on the Westminster Government to devolve powers for broadcasting and 
media to the Senedd, and for the Welsh Government to proceed with the work of preparing 
and discussing with Westminster how best to realise this.  
 
The member set out the context to his motion, noting:- 

Page 23



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

18 

• That it had become clear in recent years that Wales did not get the full picture when 
it came to discussing affairs that were key to us as a nation, and that not having 
control of the media had caused confusion to the people of Wales when discussing 
protests, crises and general affairs that affected us as people from day to day.  

• The lockdowns during Covid were a classic example of this, when the media had 
shared news that was not relevant to Wales, thus causing confusion with regards to 
people's right to cross the border. 

• The same story was also true when Welsh affairs were discussed on the national 
news and in the national papers; matters that included devolution, the farmers' 
protest, national healthcare, and a whole host of important issues, because the 
Welsh perspective and time afforded to these issues was very limited. 

• It was also disappointing that Welsh broadcasting had not had the same opportunity 
to grow as media in similar countries, such as Catalonia and the Basque Country, 
that had various channels in their own language, as well as bilingual channels, and 
channels in Spanish that had a Catalan/Basque perspective. 

• Without a full, clear debate with a Welsh perspective on these key issues, it became 
difficult to understand what next steps were to be taken, which meant that we tended 
to go round in circles on hot topics without knowing which way to resolve them. 

• It was important that the Westminster Government and the Welsh Government 
entered discussions at once on how broadcasting and media could be devolved, by 
looking at how to fund it and make it sustainable. 

 
Other members expressed support to the proposal and noted:- 

• That TV/radio channels were established in the Basque Country and Catalonia 
around the same time as when S4C and Radio Cymru were established here in 
Wales.  In terms of context, the Basque Country initially had 1 TV channel and 1 
radio channel, but now had 6 TV channels and 5 radio channels.  At the beginning 
Catalonia had 1 TV channel and 1 radio channel, but they now had 6 TV channels 
and 3 radio channels.  

• That the UK Government's Media Bill 2024 replaced the need to offer provision 
through the medium of Welsh, and although the Senedd Cymru's Culture Committee 
had expressed clear concern about this, the clause was not protected.  As a result, 
more than 20 years of Welsh language broadcasting on the commercial channels, 
including Champion, Heart and Capital, came to an end on 24 February this year, 
resulting in job losses and creating a void in terms of our culture. 

• Members had heard in recent days that Radio Cymru and BBC Sounds would not 
be able to broadcast to people outside the UK due to the changes to the BBC 
Sounds provision.  This would be a huge loss for Welsh-learners around the world 
and for Welsh-speakers living abroad. 

 
RESOLVED to adopt the motion, namely:- 
The Council calls on the Westminster Government to devolve powers for 
broadcasting and media to the Senedd, and for the Welsh Government to proceed 
with the work of preparing and discussing with Westminster how best to realise this.  
 

17. RESPONSES / UPDATES TO PREVIOUS NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
Submitted – for information:- 
(1) A letter from the UK Government in response to Councillor Meryl Roberts's Notice of 

Motion to the 3 October, 2024 Council meeting regarding Winter Fuel Payments. 
(2) An e-mail from Sian Gwenllian, MS, in response to Councillor Elin Walker Jones's 

Notice of Motion to the 5 December, 2024 Council meeting regarding the 
establishment of a Dental School in Bangor.  

(3) A letter from the Welsh Government in response to Councillor Rhys Tudur's Notice of 
Motion to the 5 December, 2024 Council meeting regarding Land Transaction Tax. 

(4) A letter from the Welsh Government in response to Councillor John Pughe Roberts's 
Notice of Motion to the 5 December, 2024 Council meeting regarding the Agricultural 
Property Relief. 

Page 24



THE COUNCIL 6/3/25 

19 

(5) A letter from the Welsh Government in response to Councillor Delyth Lloyd Griffiths's 
Notice of Motion to the 5 December, 2024 Council meeting regarding social housing 
swaps.  

(6) A letter from the UK Government in response to Councillor June Jones's Notice of 
Motion to the 5 December, 2024 Council meeting regarding graduate driving licences. 

 
It was also noted that messages of support had been received from Trefdraeth Town 
Council and Bethesda Community Council to Councillor Elwyn Edwards's Notice of Motion 
to the Council meeting of 3 October, 2024 calling for St David's Day to be designated as 
an official national holiday in Wales. 

 
The meeting commenced at 1.30pm and concluded at 4.35pm. 

 
 
 

_________________________________ 

CHAIR⁠ 
 

Page 25



ATODIAD 1 / APPENDIX 1

Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Band I
Aberdaron 1,290.42 1,505.49 1,720.56 1,935.63 2,365.77 2,795.91 3,226.05 3,871.26 4,516.47
Aberdyfi 1,297.07 1,513.25 1,729.43 1,945.61 2,377.97 2,810.33 3,242.68 3,891.22 4,539.76
Abergwyngregyn 1,296.27 1,512.32 1,728.36 1,944.41 2,376.50 2,808.59 3,240.68 3,888.82 4,536.96
Abermaw (Barmouth) 1,306.77 1,524.57 1,742.36 1,960.16 2,395.75 2,831.34 3,266.93 3,920.32 4,573.71
Arthog 1,286.03 1,500.37 1,714.71 1,929.05 2,357.73 2,786.41 3,215.08 3,858.10 4,501.12
Y Bala 1,294.87 1,510.68 1,726.49 1,942.30 2,373.92 2,805.54 3,237.17 3,884.60 4,532.03
Bangor 1,366.10 1,593.78 1,821.47 2,049.15 2,504.52 2,959.88 3,415.25 4,098.30 4,781.35
Beddgelert 1,298.68 1,515.13 1,731.57 1,948.02 2,380.91 2,813.81 3,246.70 3,896.04 4,545.38
Betws Garmon 1,286.02 1,500.36 1,714.69 1,929.03 2,357.70 2,786.38 3,215.05 3,858.06 4,501.07
Bethesda 1,314.09 1,533.11 1,752.12 1,971.14 2,409.17 2,847.20 3,285.23 3,942.28 4,599.33
Bontnewydd 1,298.29 1,514.67 1,731.05 1,947.43 2,380.19 2,812.95 3,245.72 3,894.86 4,544.00
Botwnnog 1,280.61 1,494.05 1,707.48 1,920.92 2,347.79 2,774.66 3,201.53 3,841.84 4,482.15
Brithdir & Llanfachreth 1,288.53 1,503.28 1,718.04 1,932.79 2,362.30 2,791.81 3,221.32 3,865.58 4,509.84
Bryncrug 1,296.70 1,512.82 1,728.93 1,945.05 2,377.28 2,809.52 3,241.75 3,890.10 4,538.45
Buan 1,283.91 1,497.89 1,711.88 1,925.86 2,353.83 2,781.80 3,209.77 3,851.72 4,493.67
Caernarfon 1,348.63 1,573.40 1,798.17 2,022.94 2,472.48 2,922.02 3,371.57 4,045.88 4,720.19
Clynnog Fawr 1,319.29 1,539.18 1,759.06 1,978.94 2,418.70 2,858.47 3,298.23 3,957.88 4,617.53
Corris 1,311.29 1,529.83 1,748.38 1,966.93 2,404.03 2,841.12 3,278.22 3,933.86 4,589.50
Criccieth 1,310.99 1,529.49 1,747.99 1,966.49 2,403.49 2,840.49 3,277.48 3,932.98 4,588.48
Dolbenmaen 1,290.04 1,505.05 1,720.05 1,935.06 2,365.07 2,795.09 3,225.10 3,870.12 4,515.14
Dolgellau 1,310.69 1,529.14 1,747.59 1,966.04 2,402.94 2,839.84 3,276.73 3,932.08 4,587.43
Dyffryn Ardudwy 1,313.61 1,532.55 1,751.48 1,970.42 2,408.29 2,846.16 3,284.03 3,940.84 4,597.65
Y Felinheli 1,300.85 1,517.65 1,734.46 1,951.27 2,384.89 2,818.50 3,252.12 3,902.54 4,552.96
Ffestiniog 1,362.13 1,589.15 1,816.17 2,043.19 2,497.23 2,951.27 3,405.32 4,086.38 4,767.44
Y Ganllwyd 1,296.28 1,512.33 1,728.37 1,944.42 2,376.51 2,808.61 3,240.70 3,888.84 4,536.98
Harlech 1,336.73 1,559.52 1,782.31 2,005.10 2,450.68 2,896.26 3,341.83 4,010.20 4,678.57
Trefor & Llanaelhaearn 1,306.69 1,524.48 1,742.26 1,960.04 2,395.60 2,831.17 3,266.73 3,920.08 4,573.43
Llanbedr 1,325.38 1,546.28 1,767.17 1,988.07 2,429.86 2,871.66 3,313.45 3,976.14 4,638.83
Llanbedrog 1,294.33 1,510.05 1,725.77 1,941.49 2,372.93 2,804.37 3,235.82 3,882.98 4,530.14
Llanberis 1,305.38 1,522.94 1,740.51 1,958.07 2,393.20 2,828.32 3,263.45 3,916.14 4,568.83
Llandwrog 1,322.49 1,542.90 1,763.32 1,983.73 2,424.56 2,865.39 3,306.22 3,967.46 4,628.70
Llandygai 1,296.64 1,512.75 1,728.85 1,944.96 2,377.17 2,809.39 3,241.60 3,889.92 4,538.24
Llanddeiniolen 1,282.51 1,496.26 1,710.01 1,923.76 2,351.26 2,778.76 3,206.27 3,847.52 4,488.77
Llandderfel 1,290.57 1,505.66 1,720.76 1,935.85 2,366.04 2,796.23 3,226.42 3,871.70 4,516.98
Llanegryn 1,301.60 1,518.53 1,735.47 1,952.40 2,386.27 2,820.13 3,254.00 3,904.80 4,555.60
Llanelltyd 1,297.45 1,513.70 1,729.94 1,946.18 2,378.66 2,811.15 3,243.63 3,892.36 4,541.09
Llanengan 1,287.41 1,501.97 1,716.54 1,931.11 2,360.25 2,789.38 3,218.52 3,862.22 4,505.92
Llanfair 1,304.75 1,522.20 1,739.66 1,957.12 2,392.04 2,826.95 3,261.87 3,914.24 4,566.61
Llanfihangel y Pennant 1,305.03 1,522.53 1,740.04 1,957.54 2,392.55 2,827.56 3,262.57 3,915.08 4,567.59
Llanfrothen 1,307.61 1,525.55 1,743.48 1,961.42 2,397.29 2,833.16 3,269.03 3,922.84 4,576.65
Llangelynnin 1,291.47 1,506.71 1,721.96 1,937.20 2,367.69 2,798.18 3,228.67 3,874.40 4,520.13
Llangywer 1,292.60 1,508.03 1,723.47 1,938.90 2,369.77 2,800.63 3,231.50 3,877.80 4,524.10
Llanllechid 1,302.55 1,519.64 1,736.73 1,953.82 2,388.00 2,822.18 3,256.37 3,907.64 4,558.91
Llanllyfni 1,295.67 1,511.62 1,727.56 1,943.51 2,375.40 2,807.29 3,239.18 3,887.02 4,534.86
Llannor 1,286.37 1,500.77 1,715.16 1,929.56 2,358.35 2,787.14 3,215.93 3,859.12 4,502.31
Llanrug 1,329.42 1,550.99 1,772.56 1,994.13 2,437.27 2,880.41 3,323.55 3,988.26 4,652.97
Llanuwchllyn 1,305.13 1,522.65 1,740.17 1,957.69 2,392.73 2,827.77 3,262.82 3,915.38 4,567.94
Llanwnda 1,297.40 1,513.63 1,729.87 1,946.10 2,378.57 2,811.03 3,243.50 3,892.20 4,540.90
Llanycil 1,286.47 1,500.89 1,715.30 1,929.71 2,358.53 2,787.36 3,216.18 3,859.42 4,502.66
Llanystumdwy 1,286.24 1,500.61 1,714.99 1,929.36 2,358.11 2,786.85 3,215.60 3,858.72 4,501.84
Maentwrog 1,285.99 1,500.33 1,714.66 1,928.99 2,357.65 2,786.32 3,214.98 3,857.98 4,500.98
Mawddwy 1,294.74 1,510.53 1,726.32 1,942.11 2,373.69 2,805.27 3,236.85 3,884.22 4,531.59
Nefyn 1,309.00 1,527.17 1,745.33 1,963.50 2,399.83 2,836.17 3,272.50 3,927.00 4,581.50
Pennal 1,321.97 1,542.29 1,762.62 1,982.95 2,423.61 2,864.26 3,304.92 3,965.90 4,626.88
Penrhyndeudraeth 1,352.43 1,577.84 1,803.24 2,028.65 2,479.46 2,930.27 3,381.08 4,057.30 4,733.52
Pentir 1,299.64 1,516.25 1,732.85 1,949.46 2,382.67 2,815.89 3,249.10 3,898.92 4,548.74
Pistyll 1,298.46 1,514.87 1,731.28 1,947.69 2,380.51 2,813.33 3,246.15 3,895.38 4,544.61
Porthmadog 1,292.97 1,508.47 1,723.96 1,939.46 2,370.45 2,801.44 3,232.43 3,878.92 4,525.41
Pwllheli 1,318.09 1,537.78 1,757.46 1,977.14 2,416.50 2,855.87 3,295.23 3,954.28 4,613.33
Talsarnau 1,333.69 1,555.97 1,778.25 2,000.53 2,445.09 2,889.65 3,334.22 4,001.06 4,667.90
Trawsfynydd 1,296.87 1,513.01 1,729.16 1,945.30 2,377.59 2,809.88 3,242.17 3,890.60 4,539.03
Tudweiliog 1,284.47 1,498.55 1,712.63 1,926.71 2,354.87 2,783.03 3,211.18 3,853.42 4,495.66
Tywyn 1,311.05 1,529.55 1,748.06 1,966.57 2,403.59 2,840.60 3,277.62 3,933.14 4,588.66
Waunfawr 1,285.10 1,499.28 1,713.47 1,927.65 2,356.02 2,784.38 3,212.75 3,855.30 4,497.85

Treth Cyngor: Cyngor Gwynedd + Cyngor Cymuned 

Council Tax : Cyngor Gwynedd + Community Council

Page 26



ATODIAD 2 / APPENDIX 2

Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Band I
Aberdaron 1,538.52 1,794.94 2,051.36 2,307.78 2,820.62 3,333.46 3,846.30 4,615.56 5,384.82
Aberdyfi 1,545.17 1,802.70 2,060.23 2,317.76 2,832.82 3,347.88 3,862.93 4,635.52 5,408.11
Abergwyngregyn 1,544.37 1,801.77 2,059.16 2,316.56 2,831.35 3,346.14 3,860.93 4,633.12 5,405.31
Abermaw (Barmouth) 1,554.87 1,814.02 2,073.16 2,332.31 2,850.60 3,368.89 3,887.18 4,664.62 5,442.06
Arthog 1,534.13 1,789.82 2,045.51 2,301.20 2,812.58 3,323.96 3,835.33 4,602.40 5,369.47
Bala 1,542.97 1,800.13 2,057.29 2,314.45 2,828.77 3,343.09 3,857.42 4,628.90 5,400.38
Bangor 1,614.20 1,883.23 2,152.27 2,421.30 2,959.37 3,497.43 4,035.50 4,842.60 5,649.70
Beddgelert 1,546.78 1,804.58 2,062.37 2,320.17 2,835.76 3,351.36 3,866.95 4,640.34 5,413.73
Betws Garmon 1,534.12 1,789.81 2,045.49 2,301.18 2,812.55 3,323.93 3,835.30 4,602.36 5,369.42
Bethesda 1,562.19 1,822.56 2,082.92 2,343.29 2,864.02 3,384.75 3,905.48 4,686.58 5,467.68
Bontnewydd 1,546.39 1,804.12 2,061.85 2,319.58 2,835.04 3,350.50 3,865.97 4,639.16 5,412.35
Botwnnog 1,528.71 1,783.50 2,038.28 2,293.07 2,802.64 3,312.21 3,821.78 4,586.14 5,350.50
Brithdir & Llanfachreth 1,536.63 1,792.73 2,048.84 2,304.94 2,817.15 3,329.36 3,841.57 4,609.88 5,378.19
Bryncrug 1,544.80 1,802.27 2,059.73 2,317.20 2,832.13 3,347.07 3,862.00 4,634.40 5,406.80
Buan 1,532.01 1,787.34 2,042.68 2,298.01 2,808.68 3,319.35 3,830.02 4,596.02 5,362.02
Caernarfon 1,596.73 1,862.85 2,128.97 2,395.09 2,927.33 3,459.57 3,991.82 4,790.18 5,588.54
Clynnog Fawr 1,567.39 1,828.63 2,089.86 2,351.09 2,873.55 3,396.02 3,918.48 4,702.18 5,485.88
Corris 1,559.39 1,819.28 2,079.18 2,339.08 2,858.88 3,378.67 3,898.47 4,678.16 5,457.85
Criccieth 1,559.09 1,818.94 2,078.79 2,338.64 2,858.34 3,378.04 3,897.73 4,677.28 5,456.83
Dolbenmaen 1,538.14 1,794.50 2,050.85 2,307.21 2,819.92 3,332.64 3,845.35 4,614.42 5,383.49
Dolgellau 1,558.79 1,818.59 2,078.39 2,338.19 2,857.79 3,377.39 3,896.98 4,676.38 5,455.78
Dyffryn Ardudwy 1,561.71 1,822.00 2,082.28 2,342.57 2,863.14 3,383.71 3,904.28 4,685.14 5,466.00
Y Felinheli 1,548.95 1,807.10 2,065.26 2,323.42 2,839.74 3,356.05 3,872.37 4,646.84 5,421.31
Ffestiniog 1,610.23 1,878.60 2,146.97 2,415.34 2,952.08 3,488.82 4,025.57 4,830.68 5,635.79
Y Ganllwyd 1,544.38 1,801.78 2,059.17 2,316.57 2,831.36 3,346.16 3,860.95 4,633.14 5,405.33
Harlech 1,584.83 1,848.97 2,113.11 2,377.25 2,905.53 3,433.81 3,962.08 4,754.50 5,546.92
Trefor & Llanaelhaearn 1,554.79 1,813.93 2,073.06 2,332.19 2,850.45 3,368.72 3,886.98 4,664.38 5,441.78
Llanbedr 1,573.48 1,835.73 2,097.97 2,360.22 2,884.71 3,409.21 3,933.70 4,720.44 5,507.18
Llanbedrog 1,542.43 1,799.50 2,056.57 2,313.64 2,827.78 3,341.92 3,856.07 4,627.28 5,398.49
Llanberis 1,553.48 1,812.39 2,071.31 2,330.22 2,848.05 3,365.87 3,883.70 4,660.44 5,437.18
Llandwrog 1,570.59 1,832.35 2,094.12 2,355.88 2,879.41 3,402.94 3,926.47 4,711.76 5,497.05
Llandygai 1,544.74 1,802.20 2,059.65 2,317.11 2,832.02 3,346.94 3,861.85 4,634.22 5,406.59
Llanddeiniolen 1,530.61 1,785.71 2,040.81 2,295.91 2,806.11 3,316.31 3,826.52 4,591.82 5,357.12
Llandderfel 1,538.67 1,795.11 2,051.56 2,308.00 2,820.89 3,333.78 3,846.67 4,616.00 5,385.33
Llanegryn 1,549.70 1,807.98 2,066.27 2,324.55 2,841.12 3,357.68 3,874.25 4,649.10 5,423.95
Llanelltyd 1,545.55 1,803.15 2,060.74 2,318.33 2,833.51 3,348.70 3,863.88 4,636.66 5,409.44
Llanengan 1,535.51 1,791.42 2,047.34 2,303.26 2,815.10 3,326.93 3,838.77 4,606.52 5,374.27
Llanfair 1,552.85 1,811.65 2,070.46 2,329.27 2,846.89 3,364.50 3,882.12 4,658.54 5,434.96
Llanfihangel y Pennant 1,553.13 1,811.98 2,070.84 2,329.69 2,847.40 3,365.11 3,882.82 4,659.38 5,435.94
Llanfrothen 1,555.71 1,815.00 2,074.28 2,333.57 2,852.14 3,370.71 3,889.28 4,667.14 5,445.00
Llangelynnin 1,539.57 1,796.16 2,052.76 2,309.35 2,822.54 3,335.73 3,848.92 4,618.70 5,388.48
Llangywer 1,540.70 1,797.48 2,054.27 2,311.05 2,824.62 3,338.18 3,851.75 4,622.10 5,392.45
Llanllechid 1,550.65 1,809.09 2,067.53 2,325.97 2,842.85 3,359.73 3,876.62 4,651.94 5,427.26
Llanllyfni 1,543.77 1,801.07 2,058.36 2,315.66 2,830.25 3,344.84 3,859.43 4,631.32 5,403.21
Llannor 1,534.47 1,790.22 2,045.96 2,301.71 2,813.20 3,324.69 3,836.18 4,603.42 5,370.66
Llanrug 1,577.52 1,840.44 2,103.36 2,366.28 2,892.12 3,417.96 3,943.80 4,732.56 5,521.32
Llanuwchllyn 1,553.23 1,812.10 2,070.97 2,329.84 2,847.58 3,365.32 3,883.07 4,659.68 5,436.29
Llanwnda 1,545.50 1,803.08 2,060.67 2,318.25 2,833.42 3,348.58 3,863.75 4,636.50 5,409.25
Llanycil 1,534.57 1,790.34 2,046.10 2,301.86 2,813.38 3,324.91 3,836.43 4,603.72 5,371.01
Llanystumdwy 1,534.34 1,790.06 2,045.79 2,301.51 2,812.96 3,324.40 3,835.85 4,603.02 5,370.19
Maentwrog 1,534.09 1,789.78 2,045.46 2,301.14 2,812.50 3,323.87 3,835.23 4,602.28 5,369.33
Mawddwy 1,542.84 1,799.98 2,057.12 2,314.26 2,828.54 3,342.82 3,857.10 4,628.52 5,399.94
Nefyn 1,557.10 1,816.62 2,076.13 2,335.65 2,854.68 3,373.72 3,892.75 4,671.30 5,449.85
Pennal 1,570.07 1,831.74 2,093.42 2,355.10 2,878.46 3,401.81 3,925.17 4,710.20 5,495.23
Penrhyndeudraeth 1,600.53 1,867.29 2,134.04 2,400.80 2,934.31 3,467.82 4,001.33 4,801.60 5,601.87
Pentir 1,547.74 1,805.70 2,063.65 2,321.61 2,837.52 3,353.44 3,869.35 4,643.22 5,417.09
Pistyll 1,546.56 1,804.32 2,062.08 2,319.84 2,835.36 3,350.88 3,866.40 4,639.68 5,412.96
Porthmadog 1,541.07 1,797.92 2,054.76 2,311.61 2,825.30 3,338.99 3,852.68 4,623.22 5,393.76
Pwllheli 1,566.19 1,827.23 2,088.26 2,349.29 2,871.35 3,393.42 3,915.48 4,698.58 5,481.68
Talsarnau 1,581.79 1,845.42 2,109.05 2,372.68 2,899.94 3,427.20 3,954.47 4,745.36 5,536.25
Trawsfynydd 1,544.97 1,802.46 2,059.96 2,317.45 2,832.44 3,347.43 3,862.42 4,634.90 5,407.38
Tudweiliog 1,532.57 1,788.00 2,043.43 2,298.86 2,809.72 3,320.58 3,831.43 4,597.72 5,364.01
Tywyn 1,559.15 1,819.00 2,078.86 2,338.72 2,858.44 3,378.15 3,897.87 4,677.44 5,457.01
Waunfawr 1,533.20 1,788.73 2,044.27 2,299.80 2,810.87 3,321.93 3,833.00 4,599.60 5,366.20

Treth Cyngor: Cyngor Gwynedd + Cyngor Cymuned + Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throsedd Gogledd Cymru

Council Tax : Cyngor Gwynedd + Community Council + North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner

Page 27



ATODIAD 3 / APPENDIX 3

Cynnydd yn y Dreth Cyngor fesul Cymuned / Increase in Council Tax by Community

Cymuned/ Community

Sylfaen Drethiannol 

/ Taxbase

(Band D) 

Praesept / 

Precept 

£

Treth Cymuned 

/ Community 

Tax

Treth Gwynedd 

/ Gwynedd 

Tax

Treth Heddlu 

/ Police Tax

Cyfanswm / Total 

(Band D) 

2025/26

Band D 

2024/25 

£

Cynnydd / 

Increase

24/25 - 25/26

Cynnydd / 

Increase

%
Aberdaron 621.88 17,500 28.14 1,907.49 372.15 2,307.78 2,132.26 175.52 8.2%

Aberdyfi 1,194.77 45,546 38.12 1,907.49 372.15 2,317.76 2,141.97 175.79 8.2%

Abergwyngregyn 121.90 4,500 36.92 1,907.49 372.15 2,316.56 2,136.55 180.01 8.4%

Abermaw (Barmouth) 1,317.52 69,400 52.67 1,907.49 372.15 2,332.31 2,156.82 175.49 8.1%

Arthog 695.76 15,000 21.56 1,907.49 372.15 2,301.20 2,125.52 175.68 8.3%

Y Bala 818.83 28,500 34.81 1,907.49 372.15 2,314.45 2,138.63 175.82 8.2%

Bangor 4,244.36 601,240 141.66 1,907.49 372.15 2,421.30 2,238.78 182.52 8.2%

Beddgelert 350.40 14,200 40.53 1,907.49 372.15 2,320.17 2,141.63 178.54 8.3%

Betws Garmon 146.24 3,150 21.54 1,907.49 372.15 2,301.18 2,125.65 175.53 8.3%

Bethesda 1,765.16 112,361 63.65 1,907.49 372.15 2,343.29 2,165.56 177.73 8.2%

Bontnewydd 463.21 18,500 39.94 1,907.49 372.15 2,319.58 2,144.42 175.16 8.2%

Botwnnog 484.06 6,500 13.43 1,907.49 372.15 2,293.07 2,118.93 174.14 8.2%

Brithdir & Llanfachreth 474.36 12,000 25.30 1,907.49 372.15 2,304.94 2,130.61 174.33 8.2%

Bryncrug 355.42 13,350 37.56 1,907.49 372.15 2,317.20 2,143.40 173.80 8.1%

Buan 244.98 4,500 18.37 1,907.49 372.15 2,298.01 2,123.91 174.10 8.2%

Caernarfon 3,721.81 429,665 115.45 1,907.49 372.15 2,395.09 2,213.00 182.09 8.2%

Clynnog Fawr 489.83 35,000 71.45 1,907.49 372.15 2,351.09 2,166.41 184.68 8.5%

Corris 319.67 19,000 59.44 1,907.49 372.15 2,339.08 2,142.23 196.85 9.2%

Criccieth 1,016.89 60,000 59.00 1,907.49 372.15 2,338.64 2,154.89 183.75 8.5%

Dolbenmaen 652.91 18,000 27.57 1,907.49 372.15 2,307.21 2,132.56 174.65 8.2%

Dolgellau 1,315.09 77,000 58.55 1,907.49 372.15 2,338.19 2,165.06 173.13 8.0%

Dyffryn Ardudwy 873.94 55,000 62.93 1,907.49 372.15 2,342.57 2,163.18 179.39 8.3%

Y Felinheli 1,202.04 52,624 43.78 1,907.49 372.15 2,323.42 2,147.54 175.88 8.2%

Ffestiniog 1,842.24 250,000 135.70 1,907.49 372.15 2,415.34 2,231.73 183.61 8.2%

Y Ganllwyd 88.00 3,250 36.93 1,907.49 372.15 2,316.57 2,140.88 175.69 8.2%

Harlech 870.85 85,000 97.61 1,907.49 372.15 2,377.25 2,187.25 190.00 8.7%

Trefor & Llanaelhaearn 475.75 25,000 52.55 1,907.49 372.15 2,332.19 2,156.92 175.27 8.1%

Llanbedr 359.87 29,000 80.58 1,907.49 372.15 2,360.22 2,161.29 198.93 9.2%

Llanbedrog 882.45 30,000 34.00 1,907.49 372.15 2,313.64 2,134.34 179.30 8.4%

Llanberis 814.21 41,184 50.58 1,907.49 372.15 2,330.22 2,154.78 175.44 8.1%

Llandwrog 1,083.91 82,640 76.24 1,907.49 372.15 2,355.88 2,178.79 177.09 8.1%

Llandygai 1,038.17 38,900 37.47 1,907.49 372.15 2,317.11 2,142.69 174.42 8.1%

Llanddeiniolen 1,904.89 31,000 16.27 1,907.49 372.15 2,295.91 2,121.61 174.30 8.2%

Llandderfel 528.88 15,000 28.36 1,907.49 372.15 2,308.00 2,130.43 177.57 8.3%

Llanegryn 174.80 7,850 44.91 1,907.49 372.15 2,324.55 2,147.10 177.45 8.3%

Llanelltyd 310.17 12,000 38.69 1,907.49 372.15 2,318.33 2,136.75 181.58 8.5%

Llanengan 2,751.39 65,000 23.62 1,907.49 372.15 2,303.26 2,128.09 175.17 8.2%

Llanfair 362.68 18,000 49.63 1,907.49 372.15 2,329.27 2,154.43 174.84 8.1%

Llanfihangel y Pennant 251.76 12,600 50.05 1,907.49 372.15 2,329.69 2,152.88 176.81 8.2%

Llanfrothen 237.36 12,800 53.93 1,907.49 372.15 2,333.57 2,152.79 180.78 8.4%

Llangelynnin 484.85 14,405 29.71 1,907.49 372.15 2,309.35 2,133.15 176.20 8.3%

Llangywer 159.19 5,000 31.41 1,907.49 372.15 2,311.05 2,135.65 175.40 8.2%

Llanllechid 371.67 17,219 46.33 1,907.49 372.15 2,325.97 2,151.18 174.79 8.1%

Llanllyfni 1,471.45 53,000 36.02 1,907.49 372.15 2,315.66 2,138.77 176.89 8.3%

Llannor 951.51 21,000 22.07 1,907.49 372.15 2,301.71 2,127.14 174.57 8.2%

Llanrug 1,154.25 100,000 86.64 1,907.49 372.15 2,366.28 2,179.11 187.17 8.6%

Llanuwchllyn 334.68 16,800 50.20 1,907.49 372.15 2,329.84 2,152.88 176.96 8.2%

Llanwnda 857.37 33,100 38.61 1,907.49 372.15 2,318.25 2,142.24 176.01 8.2%

Llanycil 213.75 4,750 22.22 1,907.49 372.15 2,301.86 2,126.37 175.49 8.3%

Llanystumdwy 937.44 20,500 21.87 1,907.49 372.15 2,301.51 2,126.64 174.87 8.2%

Maentwrog 319.62 6,872 21.50 1,907.49 372.15 2,301.14 2,125.06 176.08 8.3%

Mawddwy 378.38 13,100 34.62 1,907.49 372.15 2,314.26 2,138.80 175.46 8.2%

Nefyn 1,696.20 95,000 56.01 1,907.49 372.15 2,335.65 2,159.46 176.19 8.2%

Pennal 238.53 18,000 75.46 1,907.49 372.15 2,355.10 2,180.62 174.48 8.0%

Penrhyndeudraeth 838.59 101,606 121.16 1,907.49 372.15 2,400.80 2,144.42 256.38 12.0%

Pentir 1,310.58 55,000 41.97 1,907.49 372.15 2,321.61 2,147.43 174.18 8.1%

Pistyll 298.51 12,000 40.20 1,907.49 372.15 2,319.84 2,144.27 175.57 8.2%

Porthmadog 2,304.34 73,658 31.97 1,907.49 372.15 2,311.61 2,134.63 176.98 8.3%

Pwllheli 1,866.35 130,000 69.65 1,907.49 372.15 2,349.29 2,162.36 186.93 8.6%

Talsarnau 365.44 34,000 93.04 1,907.49 372.15 2,372.68 2,165.50 207.18 9.6%

Trawsfynydd 528.93 20,000 37.81 1,907.49 372.15 2,317.45 2,143.79 173.66 8.1%

Tudweiliog 520.39 10,000 19.22 1,907.49 372.15 2,298.86 2,124.62 174.24 8.2%

Tywyn 1,776.31 104,951 59.08 1,907.49 372.15 2,338.72 2,162.38 176.34 8.2%

Waunfawr 595.31 12,000 20.16 1,907.49 372.15 2,299.80 2,125.88 173.92 8.2%

Awdurdod 2025/26 2024/25 Authority
Cyngor Gwynedd 1,907.49 1,755.47 8.66% Gwynedd Council
Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throsedd Gogledd Cymru 372.15 349.65 6.44% North Wales Police & Crime Commissioner
Cynghorau Cymuned (Cyfartaledd) 60.58 55.53 9.09% Community Councils (Average)
Cyfanswm 2,340.22 2,160.65 8.3% Total

Page 28



 

  

CYNGOR GWYNEDD  

 

Report to a meeting of Cyngor Gwynedd  
  
Date of Meeting: 1 May 2025 
 
Title of Item:  Annual Review of the Council’s Political Balance  
      
 
Contact Officer: Ian Jones,  
    Head of Democratic Services  
     

 

1. THE DECISION SOUGHT 
 

The Council is asked to: 
 

• adopt the list of committees and sub-committees to be established for the 
municipal year, as noted in Appendix A, and adopt the allocation of seats 
and senior salaries as noted in the appendix.   
 

• delegate the power to the Head of Democratic Services to make 
appointments to the committees on the basis of the political balance and in 
accordance with the wishes of the political groups. 
 

• allocate the chairpersonships of scrutiny committees on the basis of the 
political balance as follows: 
  
Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee   Plaid Cymru Group 

   Communities Scrutiny Committee    Plaid Cymru Group  
   Care Scrutiny Committee    Independent Group  
 

• adopt the allocation of seats for the North Wales Corporate Joint Committee 
Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the term of this Council unless 
there is a substantial change to the political balance – there is 1 seat for 
Plaid Cymru Group and 1 seat for the Independent Group. 

 
 

2. BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE 
 

2.1. INTRODUCTION 
 

2.1.1 In accordance with statutory requirements, it is required to undertake an annual 
review of the Council balance, and this is completed at the annual meeting. 
 

2.1.2 At the meeting of the full Council on 9th May, 2024 it was reported that the 
Council’s political balance was as follows: 

 Group  Number 
 Plaid Cymru   46 
 Independent   21 
 Labour Democrats    2 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



 

  

   
Total      69 

 
2.1.3 Since then, the following changes have happened: 

 

• Councillor Gwilym Evans, Plaid Cymru Group was elected to Ward Llanberis in 
October 2024 following Councillor Kim Jones, Plaid Cymru Group stepping down.  
There was no change to the political balance. 

• Councillor Linda Ann Jones, Ward Teigl, Plaid Cymru Group, stood down from her 
role as Councillor in February 2025. 

• A by-election was held in Ward Teigl on 10th April 2025. 

• Councillor Geraint Parry was elected to Ward Teigl, who has joined the Plaid 
Cymru group. 
 

2.1.4 Therefore, the Council’s political balance is as follows: 
 
Group Number 
Plaid Cymru 46 
Independent 21 
Labour Democrats  2 
 
Total 69 

 
2.2  ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COMMITTEES 

2.2.1  To remind members, the four main rules included in the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 in relation to the allocation of seats are noted here:- 

(a)  Every seat on a committee cannot be allocated to the same political group; 

(b)  The majority of seats on a committee must be allocated to a political group if the 
number of persons who are members of that group constitute a majority of the 
Council’s members; 

(c)  Subject to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, the number of seats on ordinary 
committees allocated to each political group will be the same as the number of 
total seats the members of that group have on the Council; 

(ch)  Subject to paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above, the number of seats on a 
committee allocated to each political group will be the same proportion of seats 
on the committee as the number of seats the members of that group have on 
the Council. 

2.2.2 In order to ensure that these rules are adhered to, the Council has been dealing 
with committees in different blocks in the past. Also, this makes it easier to 
ensure that rule (c) in paragraph 2.2.1 above is adhered to.  

  
2.2.3 In simple terms, a standard formula of “number of Group Members/ number of 

Council Members x number of committee seats” is used as a starting point, with 
adjustments to full seats being made per committee and per block of 
committees to identify the best fit for the political balance across all committees.    

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 30



 

  

2.3  CHANGES TO THE ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COMMITTEES  
 
  

2.3.1  The table in Appendix A confirms which committees are to be established for 
the municipal year. There are no changes to the allocation of seats on 
committees since the allocation adopted on 9th May, 2024. 

 

2.3.2 The Council is required to adopt the seating allocation in accordance with the 
political balance as noted in Appendix A. 

 
2.4  CHAIRPERSONSHIPS AND VICE-CHAIRPERSONSHIPS  
 
  

2.4.1  In order to respond to the requirements of the Local Government Measure 
(2011) in terms of allocation of chairpersonships and vice-chairpersonships the 
committees are divided into separate blocks. 

 
2.4.2  In accordance with the requirements of sections 66-75 of the Local Government 

(Wales) Measure 2011 it is a requirement to allocate the chairpersonships of 
scrutiny committees in order to ensure, as far as possible, that political balance 
is reflected in those chairpersonships and that the groups that are not 
represented on the executive are given a fair proportion of the 
chairpersonships. 

 
2.4.3 In simple terms, reglulations mean that the formula used for calculating the 

allocation for the Scrutiny chairs is slightly different.  The formula (number of 
Group Members/ Number of council Members x number of Chairs” is the 
starting point.  However, the regulations state that the number must be ‘rounded 
down’ for the executive Group.  However, in the current case, as Plaid Cymru 
Group have 46 members, it means that they have 2 Chairs (46/69 x 3 = 2).    

 
2.4.4  The only committees in which the chairs are to be allocated on the basis of 

political balance are the Scrutiny Committees. The annual review confirms that 
the Chairpersonship of two of the scrutiny committees are to be allocated 
to the Plaid Cymru Group and one of the Chairpersonships to be allocated 
to the Independent Group.   

 
2.4.5 In accordance with the agreement of the Council Business Group, it is 

suggested that the Chairpersonships are allocated as follows: 
 
   Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee   Plaid Cymru Group  
   Communities Scrutiny Committee   Plaid Cymru Groups 
   Care Scrutiny Committee  Independent Group  
 
 

2.4.6  There are no statutory or constitutional provisions to control the appointments to 
the vice-chairpersonships or to the chairpersonships of the remaining 
committees other than  

• a member of the executive cannot chair the Licensing Committee or the 
Democratic Services Committee. 

• Chairpersonship of the Governance and Audit Committee must go to a Lay 
Member. 

 
2.4.7 The committees themselves will elect their chairpersons in these cases subject 

to the procedural rules limiting the term of a Chairperson to two years.  
 
 
 

Page 31



 

  

2.5 NORTH WALES JOINT CORPORATE COMMITTEE JOINT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 
2.5.1 The Full Council on 6th March decided to establish a North Wales Joint 

Corporate Committee Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  We are awaiting 
the final decision of one Council, however to facilitate the Process for the future 
it is sensible to adopt the seat allocation as part of the annual report.   

 
2.5.2 The regluations note “All appointing Authorities must ensure, to the degree that 

is practical, that Members of the joint overview and scrutiny committee ..... 
reflects the balance of the political groups for the time being from the Members 
of the appointing authority”  

 
2.5.3 Two seats are available for Gwynedd.  Once again, the same formula is used 

as the standard formula to allocate to committee seats, being “number of Group 
Members/ total number of Members x number of seats on the committee”, 
rounding to the nearest full number.  Following the above formula one seat on 
the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee will go to Plaid Cymru Group and 
one seat will go to the Independent Group.  The appointments to the seats will 
be for the duration of the Council Term, unless there is a significant change to 
the political balance or lack of commitment from the scrutiny members. 

 
 

3. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE 
DECISION 
 

3.1        As noted above, the Council’s Business Group was consulted. 

 
3.2 STATUTORY OFFICERS’ OBSERVATIONS: 
 

Monitoring Officer: 
 

I have advised on this matter, and I am satisfied with the propriety of the recommendation.  

 
 

Statutory Finance Officer: 
 

Nothing to add from the perspective of financial propriety. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 32



 

 

APPENDIX A - ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COMMITTEES 
 
 

A Plaid Cymru Independent Lab/ 
liberal 

Total 
 

Education and Economy Scrutiny 
Committee 

12 6 0 18 

Communities Scrutiny Committee 12 5 1 18 

Care Scrutiny Committee 12 5 1 18 

Governance and Audit 8 4 0 12 

 

B Plaid Cymru Independent Lab/ 
liberal 

Total 
 

Democratic Services 10 4 1 15 

Planning 10 4 1 15 

Central Licensing 10 5 0 15 

Language  10 5 0 15 

Chief Officers Appointment 10 5 0 15 

Employment Appeals 5 2 0 7 

Number of seats 99 45 4 148 

 

C Plaid Cymru Independent Lab/ 
liberal 

Total 
 

Pensions 4 2 1 7 

Local Joint Consultative 
Committee 

7 4 0 11 

SACRE 5 2 0 7 

 

Total seats 115 53 5 173 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Senior Salaries 
• yn dynodi  

 
 

 

 

In accordance with a previous Council decision, senior salaries will be paid as follows:  

• Leader  

• Deputy Leader  

• 8 Members of the Cabinet  

• Leader of the main opposition group  

• Committee Chairs   
- Scrutiny Committees (x3)  
- Planning Committee   
- Licensing Committee (Central and General to be included as one Committee)  
- Pensions Committee 

 

• Civic Head (Chair of the Council) 

• Deputy Civic Head (Vice-chair of the Council) 
 

 
 

 

Page 33



Meeting Full Council 

Date 1 May 2025 

Subject Appointment of Members to the Standards Committee – 

Interview Panel Recommendations 

Awdur Iwan Evans, Monitoring Officer 

Decision Sought  Approval for the appointment of  Independent Member to the 
Standards Committee 

  

Background   

1. The Gwynedd Standards Committee comprises five independent members, three 

Gwynedd councillors and one community councillor  

2. The term of office of two of the independent members have or are about to come to an 

end. As both have served two terms they are not eligible to be appointed for a further term. 

3. The appointment of members of the Standards Committee is governed by the Standards 

Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 (“the Regulations”). The Regulations require the 

Council to carry out a public recruitment exercise as specified in the Regulations and to 

establish an appointments panel (comprised of up to five panel members, and including one 

lay panel member and one community councillor), to assess applications against the criteria 

established by the Council for the post, and to make a recommendation on appointment to 

full Council.  

4. The decision on appointment must be made by full Council, having regard to the 

recommendation of the Appointments Panel.  

5. The vacancies were advertised in accordance with the statutory provisions and three  

applications were received.  

6. An Appointments Panel was established, which comprised Mr Eifion Jones, Chair of the 

Standards Committee, Community Councillor Richard Parry Hughes (Community Member of 

the Standards Committee), Gwynedd Councillors Beca Roberts, Chair of the Council and 

Anne Lloyd Jones Chair of the Democratic Services  Committee and   Mr Griffith Jones as the 

statutory lay member.  

7. The Panel, supported and advised by the Monitoring Officer, interviewed the candidates 

on 3rd April 2025. Having regard to the criteria set out in the person specification for the 

role, the Panel recommended the appointment of Non Gibson and Sonal Khade.  

8. Non lives in Bethel, Arfon with over 23 years' experience as a Police officer completing 
her career as a sergeant. She has worked on a range of issues and Chaired the Early 
Intervention Team along with working on multi-agency issues and of course experience 
working within the justice system. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 11



9. Sonal lives in Pwllheli and has a background in finance and contract management in the 
public sector. Now self-employed. She has worked at a high level within local government 
and health leading on audit projects and issues. 
 

9. The Regulations provide that the independent members’ terms of office must be set at 

between four and six years. 

Recommendation 

10. The Council is recommended to approve the appointment of Non Gibson and Sonal 

Khade as Independent Members of the Standards Committee, for a term of 6 years. 

Views of Statutory Officers 

Monitoring Officer 

Responsible Officer 

Chief Finance Officer 

No objections from the perspective of financial propriety 

Page 35



 

MEETING COUNCIL  
DATE  May 1, 2025  

TITLE OF THE REPORT  Amendment of the Constitution  

PURPOSE  Reporting on delegated modifications to the 
Constitution  

CABINET MEMBER Councillor Nia Jeffreys – Leader of the Council   
AUTHOR  Iwan Evans – Monitoring Officer  

 
 

Background  

1. Section 5 of the Constitution provides that the Leader may modify the Scheme 

of Delegation contained in Section 13 of the Constitution subject to following a 

notice process.  

“5.9.3 The Council’s Scheme of Delegation and Executive Functions 

(a) The Leader(s) may amend the scheme of delegation relating to 

Executive Functions at any time.  In doing so the Leader(s) will 

give written notice to the Head of Democratic Services and to the 

person, body or committee concerned.  The notice must set out 

the extent of the amendment to the scheme of delegation, and 

whether it entails the withdrawal of delegation from any person, 

body or committee.  The Monitoring Officer will present a report to 

the next ordinary meeting of the Council setting out the changes 

made by the Leader. 

 

2. Updating work has been done on the Legislation listed within the Constitution 

in relation to Public Protection in order to incorporate up dated legislation. The 

modified Delegation Scheme is set out in Appendix 1. The work was 

completed by the Legal Manager in close consultation with the Department for 

the Environment Department and the decision notice was published on the 

2nd of April 2025. 

Front Page English 01.04.25 

Recommendation 
 

That the Council accept the report on the amendments to the Scheme of 
Delegation Appendix 1. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 12

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Councillors-and-committees/Individual-members-decision-notices/March-2025/20250402-Amendments-to-the-Constitutions-Delegation-Scheme.pdf


 
APPENDIX   

  
LEGISLATION   
   

Administration of Justice Act 1970   

Agriculture Act 1970  

Agriculture (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1972  

Agricultural Produce (Grading and Marking) Acts 1931   

Animal Boarding Establishments Act 1963  

Animal Health Act 1981  

Animal Health Establishments Act 1963   

Animal Welfare Act 2006  

Animal Welfare (Livestock Exports) Act 2024 

Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003  

Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014  

Building Act 1984   

Cancer Act 1939  

Caravan Site and Control of Development Act 1960  

Caravan Sites Act 1968  

Children and Young People (Protection from Tobacco) Act 1991  

Charities Act 1992  

Clean Air Act 1993  

Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005  

Commons Registration Act 1965   

Companies Act 2006  

Consumer Credit Act 1974  

Consumer Protection Act 1987  

Control of Pollution Act 1974  

Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989  

Criminal Justice Act 1988  

Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994  

Copyright, Design and Patents Act 1988 as amended by the Broadcasting Act 1990  

Dangerous Dogs Act 1991  

Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976  

Development of Tourism Act 1969   

Dogs Act 1906  

Education Reform Act 1988  

Energy Act 1976  

Enterprise Act 2002  

Environment Act 1995  

Environment (Wales) Act 2016  

Environment and Safety Information Act 1988  

Environmental Protection Act 1990  

Environmental Protection (Single Use Plastic Products) (Wales) Act 2023  

Page 37



Estate Agents Act 1979  

European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018  

Explosives Acts 1875  

Explosives (Age of Purchase) Act 1976  

Factories Act 1961  

Fair Trading Act 1973  

Farm and Garden Chemicals Act 1967  

Fire Safety and Safety of Places of Sport Act 1987  

Fireworks Act 2003   

Food Act 1984  

Food and Environment Protection Act 1985  

Food Safety Act 1990  

Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013  

Forgery and Counterfeiting Act 1981  

Fraud Act 2006  

Gambling Act 2005  

Hallmarking Act 1973  

Health Act 2006  

Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974  

Home Safety Act 1961  

House to House Collections Act 1939  

Housing Act 1996 and 2004  

Licensing Act 2003  

Live Music Act 2012  

Local Government Act 1972  

Local Government Act 1992  

Local Government and Housing Act 1989  

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976  

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982  

Local Government Act 2003  

Medicines Act 1968   

Merchant Shipping Act 1979  

Motor Cycle Noise Act 1987  

Motor Vehicles (Safety Equipment for Children) Act 1991  

National Assistance Act 1948  

Noise Act 1996  

Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993  

Olympic Symbol etc. (Protection) Act 1995  

Pet Animals Act 1951  

Performing Animals (Regulation) Act 1925  

Poisons Act 1972  

Police, Factories etc. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916  

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011  

Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999  

Page 38



Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949  

Prices Acts 1974  

Protection of Children (Tobacco) Act 1986  

Public Health Act 1936  

Public Health Act 1961 (Section 73)  

Public Health (Control of Diseases) Act 1984  

Public Health (Wales) Act 2017  

Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978  

Regulatory & Enforcement Sanctions Act 2008   

Retained EU Law (Revocation and Reform) Act 2023  

Riding Establishments Act 1964   

Road Safety Act 2006  

Road Traffic Act 1988 and 1991  

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984  

Road Traffic (Consequential Provisions) Act 1988  

Road Traffic Offenders Act 1988  

Road Traffic (Foreign Vehicles) Act 1972  

 Safety of Sports Grounds Act 1975  

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013   

Slaughterhouses Act 1974  

Slaughter of Poultry Act 1967  

Small Holdings and Allotments Act 1908-1950   

Solicitors Act 1974  

Sunbeds (Regulation) Act 2010  

Sunday Trading Act 1994  

Telecommunications Act 1984  

Theft Acts 1968 and 1978  

Theatres Act 1968  

Tobacco Advertising and Promotions Act 2002  

Town Police Clauses Act 1847  

Trade Descriptions Act 1968  

Trademarks Act 1994  

Trading Representations (Disabled Persons) Acts 1958 and 1972   

Transport Act 1985  

Unsolicited Goods and Services Act 1971 and Unsolicited Goods and Services 
(amendment) Act 1975  

Video Recording Acts 1984 and 1993  

Water Industries Act 1991  

Weights and Measures Act 1985  

 

Page 39



 

MEETING Council  

DATE 1 May 2025 

TEITL Urgent Cabinet Decision 

PURPOSE For Information 

AUTHOR Monitoring Officer  

 

BACKGROUND 

 
1. An exempt report was submitted to Cabinet on 8th April 2025 regarding the judicial 

review of the Cabinet's decision in 2024 to confirm the Article 4 Direction. The objective 
of the report was to report on the case and seek Cabinet direction on the matter. Due to 
the timetable for the submission of documentation and evidence to the Court it was 
necessary to be able to implement and communicate the decision immediately.  

 
URGENT DECISION  
 
2. As a result, an urgent decision had to be made in accordance with Section 7.25.2 of the 

Constitution so that the call-in to scrutiny procedure would not apply.  This allows for a 
Cabinet decision to come into immediate effect and specifically without having to wait for 5 
working days after publication of the decision notice before it can be acted on. This 
procedure is contingent upon the Councils Chair’s consent and reporting on the matter to the 
next Full Council, 

 
3. Agreement was received from the Chair of the Council that the decision was an urgent 

matter and this was reasonable under the circumstances. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

To accept and note the contents of the report. 

 

Chief Finance Officer  

“No comments from the perspective of financial propriety.” 

 

Monitoring Officer 

Report author.  

 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 13


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	9 ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S POLITICAL BALANCE
	11 APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE - INTERVIEW PANEL RECOMMENDATIONS
	12 AMENDMENT OF THE CONSTITUTION
	Item 12 - Appendix 1

	13 URGENT CABINET DECISION

